Committee Agenda

Epping Forest
District Council

Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee
Thursday, 4th June, 2015

You are invited to attend the next meeting of Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee,
which will be held at:

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Thursday, 4th June, 2015

at 6.30 pm .
Glen Chipp
Chief Executive
Democratic Services Jackie Leither Tel: 01992 564756
Officer Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Members:

Councillors D Stallan (Chairman), R Bassett, W Breare-Hall, Ms S Stavrou and G Waller

MEMBERS ARE REMINDED TO BRING THEIR COPIES OF
THE DESIGN STANDARDS TO THE MEETING

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

(Director of Governance) To report the appointment of any substitute members for the
meeting.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on the agenda.
4. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 18)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 5 March 2015.
5. HCA INVESTMENT PARTNER QUALIFICATION (Pages 19 - 22)

(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-001-2015/16).



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee 4 June 2015

10.

1.

12

13.

FEASIBILITY STUDIES (Pages 23 - 212)

(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-002-2015/16).
FINANCIAL REPORT (Pages 213 - 222)

(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-003-2015/16).
ACCELERATION OF THE HOUSEBUILDING PROGRAME (Pages 223 - 232)
(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-004-2015/16).
FUTURE SITES - PHASES 4 & 5 (Pages 233 - 242)

(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-005-2015/16).
MARDEN CLOSE AND PHASE 1 & 2 PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 243 - 250)
(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-006-2015/16).

RISK REGISTER (Pages 251 - 256)

(Director of Communities) To consider the attached report (CHB-007-2015/16).

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks’ notice of non-urgent
items is required.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt

information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee 4 June 2015

information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential tems Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules
contained in the Constitution require:

(1)

()

©)

All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers: Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a)

(b)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Council Housebuilding Cabinet Date: Thursday, 5 March 2015
Committee

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 6.30 -8.30 pm
High Street, Epping

Members D Stallan (Chairman), R Bassett, Ms S Stavrou, G Waller and A Lion
Present:

Other Mrs A Grigg, C C Pond, C Roberts, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and
Councillors: J M Whitehouse

Apologies: Councillor W Breare-Hall

Officers A Hall (Director of Communities), P Pledger (Assistant Director (Housing
Present: Property)) and J Leither (Democratic Services Assistant)
Also in D Read (East Thames Group), | Collins (Pellings LLP) and N Penfold

attendance: (Pellings LLP)

40. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

The Cabinet Committee noted that Councillor A Lion substituted for Councillor W
Breare-Hall at the meeting.

41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest pursuant to the Council’'s Code of Member
Conduct.

The Chairman advised the Cabinet Committee that he would stand down as
Chairman for Agenda Item 6, Queens Road, North Weald as he was a Ward Member
and that Councillor R Bassett would assume the Chairmanship for this item.

42, MINUTES
Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 be taken as read and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

43. PHASE 2 - FUTURE USE OPTIONS

The Assistant Director of Housing (Property) presented a report to the Cabinet
Committee, he advised that on 7 January 2015, the Area Planning Sub-Committee
(South) considered and refused planning permission for Phase 2 of the Council’s
Housebuilding Programme at Burton Road, Loughton consisting of 52 new affordable
homes for applicants on the Council’s housing register. The decision for refusal was
recorded as:

Page 5 1



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

‘By reason of its bulk, design and density in terms of numbers of dwellings, the
proposal would have an overbearing relationship with neighbouring land to the
detriment of the visual amenities of the locality’.

In line with the Policy on the Future Use of Development Sites Unsuitable for
Development agreed in April 2014, the Cabinet Committee considered the future use
of the development site at Burton Road, Loughton. Set out below were a number of
options..

(1) Appeal Against the Planning Decision

Any applicant was entitled to submit an appeal to the Secretary of State against a
decision relating to a planning application. The Council had never before appealed
against its own decision. However, in this instance, the application for Phase 2 of the
Council's Housebuilding Programme was submitted in the name of East Thames
Group (ETG), who were the Council’'s appointed Development Agent and they could
be requested to submit an appeal, funded in full by the Council (since it was the
Council that funded the Housebuilding Programme).

When submitting an appeal, applicants could ask for the case to be dealt with as a
Written Representation, a Hearing or an Enquiry. If the Council were to take any of
these appeal options it was important to note that the Council would have to pay for
not only the Consultants fees and disbursements to prepare and present the appeal
but also the fees associated with defending the appeal. There were a number of
differences for each of the appeal processes, which are set out below:

a. Written Representation — Where both the applicant (ETG) and the
Council submit a written statement of case including all supporting
documentations. The appointed Planning Inspector will then consider the
documents, often visiting the site before reaching a decision. This could take
between 3 and 6 months from submission before a decision was reached.
ETG have estimated the cost of submitting a Written Representation to be
around £5,000, and the cost of defending the appeal was estimated to be in
the region of £2,500.

b. Hearing — A simple examination of the matters arising under the
appeal, normally where evidence did not need to be tested under cross
examination. A hearing was normally heard over one day, and was led by the
Planning Inspector. This could take between 6 and 9 months from submission
before a decision was reached. ETG have estimated the cost of submitting an
appeal and attending the hearing to be around £27,500 (excluding VAT and
disbursements), and the cost of defending the appeal was estimated to be in
the region of £4,500.

C. Public Inquiry — This was similar to a hearing. However, this required
the appointment of legal representation in the form of a Barrister on each side
for the purpose of cross examination of evidence. This could take between 9
and 12 months from submission before a decision was reached. ETG have
estimated the cost of submitting an appeal and attending the Public Inquiry to
be around £34,375 plus £15,000 for Legal Representation (excluding VAT
and disbursements) and the cost of defending the appeal was estimated to be
in the region of £4,500 plus £15,000 for its own legal representation.

The Cabinet Committee did not have delegated authority to submit an appeal,
therefore, if the decision of the Cabinet Committee was to appeal, then on a point of

Page 6 2



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

procedure, it must seek the approval of Council. Any appeal must be submitted by 7
July 2015, being 6 months of the decision being reached.

The main risks associated with submitting an appeal was that the Planning Inspector
may decide to uphold the decision of the Area Planning Sub-Committee (South), in
which case there would not only be a substantial delay in the house-building
programme, but there would also be a significant amount of abortive fees. The risk to
the Council’s reputation over appealing against its own decision should also not be
overlooked.

(2) To submit a revised planning application for a scheme consisting of 43
new affordable homes with 100% unallocated parking (Option 1)

Attached to the Agenda at Appendix 1 was a feasibility study, which considered an
alternative design for the site based on a 43-home scheme with 100% unallocated
parking. Whilst this did address the reasons for refusal, and also addressed
objections raised by local residents, in response to the planning application, it was
less favourable to the Council’'s Planning Officers due to the large banks of open
parking and its impact on the environment.

The main differences between this design and the original that was refused planning
permission was the loss of 3 flats to one end of Block C to create one bank of parking
spaces, the removal of the four top-floor flats reducing the overall height to 3-stories
and the loss of 2x3 bedroom houses to create a second bank of parking spaces so
as to achieve 100% parking across the whole scheme. There was a loss of amenity
space as a result of this design change in order to accommodate the additional
parking.

The schedule of materials, fenestration and overall elevational treatment would need
to be considered in more detail to take account of the design changes.

From the financial Investment Report at Appendix 3 of the Agenda, the Total Scheme
Costs for a 43 home scheme was £8.06m, which was made up of £7.2m works costs
and £0.86m fees.

The financial target of loan repayment in Year 30 could be achieved providing it
received subsidy of £2.24m. The subsidy per unit equates to £52,000.

The additional design fees payable to ETG and their Architects for preparing a
revised set of drawings and details and re-submitting the planning application would
be £21,550 plus VAT. There were no additional planning application fees if
resubmitted before 7 January 2016.

Should this option be agreed by the Cabinet Committee, there would be a resultant
loss of HCA Affordable Housing Grant. For estimating purposes, a reduced rate of
£12,500 per flat could be assumed. However, this would require negotiating with the
HCA.

The Cabinet Committee had already agreed to make a contribution to the NHS for
healthcare provision within the District, albeit based on a 52-unit scheme. Should that
be reduced to 43 homes as a result of this option then the Council would need to
negotiate with the NHS over an alternative amount of financial contribution and enter
into a new Unilateral Undertaking.

The main risks associated with this option were that the revised scheme may not be
seen as going far enough to overcome the concerns of the Area Planning Sub-

Page 7 3



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

Committee (South) and was once again refused planning permission by the Sub-
Committee, resulting in further abortive fees.

(3) To submit a revised planning application, for a scheme consisting of 52
affordable homes and 50% unallocated parking, but reduced in height, scale
and massing (Option 2)

Attached at Appendix 2 of the Agenda was a feasibility study, which considered an
alternative design for the site based on a reduction in height, scale and massing, yet
still achieved 52 new affordable homes and 50% unallocated parking. Whilst this did
address the majority of the reasons for refusal, it did not address concerns over
density. The scheme does not increase the parking allocation either, although it
should be noted that this was not a reason for refusal.

From the Financial Investment Report at Appendix 3 of the Agenda, the Total
Scheme Costs for this revised scheme consisting of 52 new affordable homes was
£9.26m, which was made up of £8.25m works costs and £1.01m fees.

The financial target of loan repayment in Year 30 could be achieved providing it
received subsidy of £2.18m. The subsidy per unit equates to £42,000.

The additional design fees payable to ETG and their Architects for preparing a
revised set of drawings and details and re-submitting the planning application would
be £21,550 plus VAT. There were no additional planning application fees if re-
submitted before 7 January 2016.

Should this option be agreed by the Cabinet Committee, it would mean the existing
HCA affordable Housing Grant would remain the same as would the financial
contribution to the NHS towards healthcare in the district.

The main risks associated with this option were, again that the revised scheme did
not go far enough to overcome the concerns of the Area Planning Sub-Committee
(South) and was once again refused planning permission, resulting in abortive fees.

(4) To sell the site for affordable rented housing to a Housing Association
in return for a capital receipt

Should the Cabinet Committee opt to sell the site, then one option would be to sell it
to one of the Council’s Preferred Housing Association Partners, for them to develop
the site for affordable housing, from which the Council could obtain nomination rights.
This would benefit the Council by way of a capital receipt for the land value, which
could be used to fund other Council House-building developments.

The value of the land had not been assessed; therefore, should this option be agreed
by the Cabinet Committee, it would mean a separate financial viability study would
need to be undertaken to establish a land value and consideration of the most
appropriate way to appoint the housing association.

The main drawback was the fact the Council would not retain the affordable rent for
the homes that were built, and that a similar number of homes would have to be put
into the Council Housebuilding Programme to replace these ones taken out. There
was also the consideration that a housing association could submit plans for more
homes to be delivered on the site.

Since the Council had secured HCA Affordable Housing Grant for the delivery of
affordable housing on this site based on a firm scheme, Officers were also of the

Page 8 4



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

view that this would cause reputational difficulties with the HCA, bearing in mind that
this was only the first scheme where grant had been secured, and could result in the
not agreeing any future affordable housing grant applications from the Council.

(5) To sell the site for private development in return for a capital receipt

The benefits, drawbacks and risks associated with this option were similar to those
above. However, the land value would be higher, no more than 40% affordable
homes are likely to be provided; and the potential for a private developer submitting
plans for more units on the site was greater.

(6) To divide up the site and sell the land to local residents to extend their
private gardens in return for a capital receipt

Whilst this option appears in the policy for the Future Use of Development Sites
Unsuitable for Development, in this instance this option was not ideally suited since
the site backed on to a row of flat blocks where the gardens were back to back.

Since the land would be sold for private gardens, the value would be very low and
reaching agreements with all of the individual occupiers of the flats would be near
impossible. The cost of drawing up legal agreements would almost offset any value
in the land.

(7) To demolish the garages, re-surface and mark out the land and to leave
the site as open car parking for local residents

With Debden Station so close, and with the adjacent shopping parade at Debden
Broadway, the land could be utilised as an extension of the “Pay and Display” car
park. This would create a revenue income for the Council, but it would require the
land to be transferred from the HRA to the General Fund, for an appropriate fee.

Such an option would not provide any much needed affordable housing in the district,
and as with selling the site, there was a risk that the HCA would frown upon any
future affordable housing grant applications from the Council, as the allocation had
been based on a firm bid.

(8) To sell the site to a Town or Parish Council for their own purposes (eg.
public amenity space) in return for a capital receipt

Whilst this could be viable option, this was likely to generate a significant capital
receipt on the scale of selling to a private developer or an ongoing revenue income
similar to what could be realised from car parking charges, and as such was not
recommended.

Decision:

(1 That, having considered the options for the future use to be adopted for the
development site at Burton Road, Loughton, following the decision of the Area
Planning Sub-Committee (South) to refuse planning permission for Phase 2 of the
Council’s house-building Programme, a revised planning application be submitted for
a scheme similar to that previously submitted, consisting of 52 new affordable homes
and 50% unallocated parking (shown as Option 2 at Appendix 2 of the report to the
Cabinet Committee) but addressing the reasons for refusal by reducing its bulk,
altering its design and overall height so as to reduce any impact on the neighbouring
land and any detriment of the visual amenities of the locality, all as set out in the

Page 9 5



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

44,

feasibility report at an estimated cost of £9,255,439, which will require an increased
subsidy of around £2,184,000 (£42k per unit) based on a 30-year pay-back period.

(2) That a detailed planning application for the scheme be submitted.

(3) That a report be submitted to the Cabinet recommending that priority be given
to the provision of an off-street parking scheme in Torrington Drive, Loughton being
undertaken, subject to a resident consultation.

(4) That the Director of Neighbourhoods be asked to give consideration to
including any new off-street parking spaces being provided as a Residents Parking
Scheme.

Reasons for Decision:

The Cabinet Committee had to decide on the future use of the development site at
Burton Road since the planning application for Phase 2 of the Council House-building
Programme was refused permission at the Area Planning Sub-Committee (South) on
7 January 2015.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:

The report set out all of the options that were available, including the advantages,
disadvantages and costs for each option.

FEASIBILITY STUDIES (REVISED) - CENTRE DRIVE (SITE B), EPPING AND
QUEENS ROAD, NORTH WEALD

The Chairman stated that he would stand down as Chairman for item (1) Queens
Road, North Weald, and Councillor R Bassett assumed the Chairmanship for this
item.

The Assistant Director of Housing (Property) presented a report to the Cabinet
Committee. He advised that at the last meeting of the Cabinet Committee on 18
December 2014, it had been decided that the sites at Queens Road, North Weald
and Centre Drive, Epping, Site B be deferred for further information and revised
feasibility studies.

(1) Queens Road, North Weald

The Assistant Director advised that the revised feasibility study was for 12 x 3
bedroom houses which were 2 stories high and each had 2 car parking spaces.
There were also 4 extra visitor car parking spaces on the site.

He reported that no firm costs could be confirmed at this meeting for the re-siting of
the substation, but that it had been estimated at £120,000.

Members were concerned that if negotiations with the tenant regarding the re-siting
of the substation broke down then the Council, being the owners of the land, could by
delegated authority issue a notice of seeking possession to the tenant. Members
asked that if negotiations broke down with the tenant and before any firm decisions
were made, they would like this item to come back to the Cabinet Committee for
further discussion.

(2) Site B, Centre Drive, Epping

Page 10 6



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

45.

The Assistant Director advised that the revised feasibility study was for 1 x 3
bedroom house which was 2 stories high with 3 car parking spaces.

Decision:

That, following consideration of a revised feasibility study and viability assessment for
the sites at Queens Road, North Weald and Centre Drive (Site B) Epping, which took
account of the Cabinet Committee’s comments made at its December 2014 meeting
consideration.

(1) Queens Road, North Weald

(a) The revised feasibility study of 12 x 3 bedroom, 2 storey units with a total of
28 car parking spaces be agreed as a viable site to progress to a detailed planning
stage;

(b) The terms of any existing licence/lease, allowing access to the allotments, be
maintained; and

(c) A further report be submitted to the Council Housebuilding Cabinet
Committee should negotiations with the tenant in Queens Road, regarding the re-
siting of the substation break down.

(2) Site B, Centre Drive, Epping

The revised feasibility study of 1 x 3 bedroom house, 2 storey’s high with a total of 3
car parking spaces be agreed as a viable site to progress to a detailed planning
stage.

Reasons for Decision:

At its meeting in December 2014, the Cabinet Committee asked that each of the 2
sites at Queens Road, North Weald and Centre Drive (Site B) Epping sites be
revised to provide an alternative mix of dwellings. Each site is presented on its own
merits at this stage. However, when each of the feasibility studies have been
considered, the Cabinet Committee will then be asked to batch the sites in line with
the Policy on Prioritisation of Sites.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:
1. Not to progress with any of the schemes presented in the agenda report.

2. To develop the sites with a different number of homes, or with an alternative
mix of property types or parking allocation.

STREET / BUILDING NAMING - PHASE 1

The Director of Communities presented a report to the Cabinet Committee he
advised that in accordance with the Terms of Reference, the names of developments
undertaken through the Council House Building Programme would follow
consultation with the Parish or Town Councils and Ward Members.

The Director had consulted Waltham Abbey Town Council on the two remaining un-

named developments within Phase 1 and, as requested, they had provided five
suggested names for each development, in a ranked order of preference.

Page 11 7



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

46.

The three Ward Members had been consulted on the Town Council’'s suggestions,
and had raised no objections.

It was therefore proposed that the two developments be named in accordance with
the Town Council’s two most preferred names.

Decision:

That, following consultation with Waltham Abbey Town Council and the three Ward
Members, and as suggested by the Town Council:

(a) The four houses and two duplex flats at the site of the former Red Cross Hall,
Roundhills, Waltham Abbey be named “Hockley Court”; and

(b) The two new houses to the rear of 66-72 Fairways, Waltham Abbey be
named “Wood Villas”.

Reasons for Decision:

The two remaining un-named developments in Phase 1 of the Council Housebuilding
Programme required names. The Cabinet Committee had been authorised by the
Leader of the Council to decide the names of new developments.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:
The main options appear to be:

(a) To name the developments after any of the other names suggested by the Town
Council; or

(b) To agree different names proposed by the Cabinet Committee itself.
PROGRESS REPORT MARDEN CLOSE, FAVERSHAM HALL AND PHASE 1

The Assistant Director of Housing (Property) presented a report to the Cabinet
Committee, he advised that Phase 1, Marden Close and Faversham Hall, were
running behind programme for a variety of reasons and asked the Consultants who
were overseeing Phase 1, Pellings LLP, to advise the Cabinet Committee of the
problems that had been encountered.

lan Collins from Pellings LLP, advised the Cabinet Committee that the two existing
buildings at Marden Close and Faversham Hall were running behind schedule due to
the age of the buildings and structural issues which at the time of tender these
elements could not be seen and were therefore not able to be factored into the time
frame. This scheme was delayed by approximately 4-5 weeks, whereas Phase 1 was
delayed due to ground conditions that required the foundations to be piled.

Members expressed concern with this delay and asked for an updated progress
report at the next meeting and also if there were any financial penalties for lateness
passed on to the Contractors, that a report on the costs be submitted at the next
meeting.

Decision:

That the current progress with regard to Marden Close and Faversham Hall, as well
as Phases 1 of the Council Housebuilding Programme be noted.

Page 12 8



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

47.

Reasons for Decision:

It was a requirement that the Housebuilding Cabinet Committee received regular
updates on progress and monitors expenditure against the House-building budget as
delegated by the Cabinet.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:
This report is for noting only.
FINANCIAL REPORTS

The Assistant Director of Housing (Property) presented a report to the Cabinet
Committee, he advised that the schedule set out at Agenda Item 9, Appendix 1 was
the current position as at 31 December 2014 with regard to the Right to Buy receipts.

The Assistant Director advised that one of the Cabinet Committee’s Terms of
Reference was to monitor expenditure on the Housing Capital Programme Budget for
the Council Housebuilding Programme, ensuring the use (within the required
deadlines) of the capital receipts made available through the Council’'s Agreement
with the Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) allowing the use
of additional “Replacement Right to Buy (RTB) Receipts” received as a result of the
Government’s increase in the maximum RTB Discount to be spent on housebuilding.

At its meeting in February 2014, the Cabinet Committee received a suite of detailed
financial reports covering all financial issues relating to the Housebuilding
Programme. Since progress was on a phase by phase basis and was monitored
separately it had been possible to consolidate the detailed financial reports into just 2
appendices.

Appendix 1 (Agenda ltem 9) captured the total amount of Replacement Right To Buy
Receipts received and available for use for “One-for-One Replacement” on the
Council’'s Housebuilding Programme, as captured on the Pooling Return to the DCLG
and when it was required to be spent. It also captured the actual expenditure to date
and compared that to the projected future planned expenditure profile.

Appendix 2 (Agenda Item 9) set out the amount and use of financial contributions
available to the Council’'s Housebuilding Programme from Section 106 Agreements,
in lieu of the provision of on-site affordable housing on private development sites,
and other sources of funding (e.g. sales of HRA land and non-RTB property, and
external funding)

This information had been captured and presented for monitoring purposes, therefore
it was recommended that the current financial position be noted.

Decision:
(1) That the current financial position be noted, in respect of:

(a) The amount of additional “Replacement Right to Buy (RTB) Receipts”
for utilisation under the Government’s “one-for-one replacement” scheme that
has been received; when it is required to be spent; the actual expenditure to

date; and the future planned expenditure profile (Appendix 1); and

(b) The amount and use of financial contributions available to the
Council’'s Housebuilding Programme from Section 106 Agreements, in lieu of

Page 13 9



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

48.

the provision of on-site affordable housing on private development sites, and
other sources of funding (e.g. sales of HRA land and non-RTB property, and
external funding) (Appendix 2).

Reasons for Decision:

The Council’'s Housebuilding Programme was a high profile, high cost activity. It was
therefore essential to ensure that budgets, costs and expenditure were properly
monitored, to enable corrective action to be taken at the earliest opportunity, when
necessary.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:
Not to have regular Financial Reports presented to the Cabinet Committee.
PRIORITISATION OF POTENTIAL FUTURE SITES

The Assistant Director of Housing (Property) presented a report to the Cabinet
Committee, he advised that at its meeting in February 2014, the Cabinet Committee
agreed a Policy on the future prioritisation of development sites based on rotating the
developments around the towns/villages where sites were located, so that all areas
had the benefit of affordable housing being provided in their area, with priority given
to areas in which the highest nhumber of housing applicants lived. The strategy that
was agreed took account of:

(a) Towns/villages with sites that could potentially deliver the greatest number of
new properties being prioritised in preference to locations where less properties
could be delivered; and

(b) Where possible, development packages/phases (i.e. the grouping of sites into
one works contract, usually undertaken each year) should generally comprise of sites
within the same town/village, in order to reduce the contractor’s site set-up costs.

The Assistant Director advised that although the prioritisation of locations had altered
slightly in the last 12 months, it was recommended that the Policy on the Prioritisation
of Sites, from which future phases, beyond Phase 3, were to be drawn up and be
based on the revised ranking table below, with Phase 4 focussing on sites in Ongar
and Buckhurst Hill.

Group A (Comprising towns/villages with sites that could potentially deliver 10 or
more new homes in total)

Group A
(Capacity for 10 or more new homes)

Priority No. of Housing Max. No. of
Order Location Applicants No. of Sites Properties
1 Loughton 459 16" 52%
2 Waltham Abbey 413 18 710
3 Epping 102 5 12
4 Ongar 84 2 11
5 Buckhurst Hill 70 5 23
6 North Weald 40 2 16
(*) = Including the Year 1 sites (#) = Excluding the sites at The Broadway

Page 14 10



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

Group B (Comprising towns/villages with sites that could potentially deliver less than
10 new homes in total)

Group B
(Capacity for less than 10 new homes)

Priority No. of Max. No. of
Order Location Housing No. of Properties
Applicants Sites

1 Roydon 23 1 3

2 Nazeing 19 2 7

3 Theydon Bois 16 2 5

4 High Ongar 13 1 2

5 Coopersale 9 3 7

6 Matching Green/Tye 2 1 2

With the locations already agreed by the Cabinet Committee for Phases 1 and 2 as
Waltham Abbey and Loughton respectively, Phase 3 was identified in the report on
the prioritisation of sites agreed by the Cabinet Committee in February 2014 as being
Epping, Coopersale and North Weald. The Cabinet committee considered the
feasibility studies for those sites at its meeting in December 2014, and all but three
sites were considered viable. However, for two of the sites at Queens Road, North
Weald and Centre Drive (Site B), Epping the Cabinet Committee asked that these be
redrawn to achieve a different mix of properties, which had been presented and
agreed in an earlier Agenda item.

It was therefore recommended that Phase 3 be made up of 35 new homes on the
following sites, being approved as viable, based on a total scheme cost of
£6,395,477, with a subsidy requirement of £923,600:

a) Queens Road, North Weald

b) Bluemans End, North Weald
c) Stewards Green Road, Epping
d) Site A Parklands, Coopersale 2x1-bed 2P flats & 2x2-bed 4P houses

e) Site C Parklands, Coopersale 1x2-bed 4P bungalow

f)  Centre Avenue, Epping - 2x3-bed 5P houses

g) Centre Drive (Site B), Epping 1x3-bed 5P houses

h) Site B Springfield, Epping 2x1-bed 2P bungalows

i) Site C Springfield, Epping 2x1-bed 2P bungalows & 2x2-bed 4P houses
j) 79 London Road, Ongar - 1x3-bed 5P house

12x3-bed 5P houses
4x3-bed 5P houses
4x3-bed 5P houses

Recommended:

(1) That the strategic approach adopted by the Cabinet Committee at its meeting
in February 2014 continues for the prioritisation of potential sites;

(2) That, taking account of the strategic approach for the prioritisation of potential
sites, and using updated statistics as at February 2015, locations be grouped
together into the following two Groups and the Priority Orders shown:

Group A (Locations with sites that could potentially deliver 10 or more homes):

Priority Location

1 Loughton
2 Waltham Abbey
3

Epping
Page 15 11



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

4 Ongar
5 Buckhurst Hill
6 North Weald

Group B (Locations with sites that could potentially deliver less than 10 homes):

Priority Location

Roydon

Nazeing

Theydon Bois

High Ongar
Coopersale
Matching Green/Tye

OO WN-=-

(3) That a review of the priority orders within Groups A and B in (2) above be
undertaken by the Cabinet Committee in 3-years’ time, having regard to the same
strategic approach set-out in the existing Policy on the Prioritisation of sites; and

(4) That, taking account of the priority order agreed by the Cabinet Committee in
February 2014, Phase 3 be made up of 35 new homes on the following sites already
agreed as viable by the Cabinet Committee at its meeting in December 2014, subject
to the two revised feasibility studies at Queens Road, North Weald and Centre Drive
(Site B), Epping, considered earlier on the agenda, being agreed, based on a total
scheme cost of £6,395,477, with a subsidy requirement of £923,600:

a) Queens Road, North Weald

b) Bluemans End, North Weald
c) Stewards Green Road, Epping
d) Site A Parklands, Coopersale 2x1-bed 2P flats & 2x2-bed 4P houses

e) Site C Parklands, Coopersale 1x2-bed 4P bungalow

f)  Centre Avenue, Epping - 2x3-bed 5P houses

g) Centre Drive (Site B), Epping 1x3-bed 5P houses

h) Site B Springfield, Epping 2x1-bed 2P bungalows

i) Site C Springfield, Epping 2x1-bed 2P bungalows & 2x2-bed 4P houses
j) 79 London Road, Ongar - 1x3-bed 5P house

12x3-bed 5P houses
4x3-bed 5P houses
4x3-bed 5P houses

(5) That, subject to the sites listed in Decision (4) above being agreed, each site
be progressed to detailed design stage, with planning applications being submitted
and, subject to planning approval, tenders to be sought in accordance with the
Procurement Strategy for House-building; and

(6) That Phase 4 of the Council’s House-building Programme focusses on Ongar
and Buckhurst Hill.

Reasons for Decision:

There was a need to review the prioritisation of potential sites for development based
on the demand from those registered on the Council’'s housing waiting list, and also
to agree the sites that were to go forward for Phase 3 of the Council House-building
Programme.

Other Options Considered and Rejected:

The main alternative options appear to be:

Page 16 12



Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee Thursday, 5 March 2015

49,

50.

(a) To adopt a different approach to the prioritisation of sites — of which there are
a myriad of alternatives;

(b) To alter the list of sites proposed for Phase 3; and

(c) To review the prioritisation of sites in 12-months’ time. However, due to the
lead-in time to develop the feasibility studies and undertake the legal checks, it
makes planning future phases difficult if the priority order changes on an annual
basis.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Chairman advised the Cabinet Committee the dates of the next two meetings
would be 16 June 2015 and 14 July 2015 at 6.30pm in the Council Chamber.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

The Cabinet Committee noted that there were no items of business on the agenda
that necessitated the exclusion of the public and press from the meeting.

CHAIRMAN

Page 17 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 5

Report to the Council Housebuilding
Cabinet Committee

Report reference: CHB-001-2015/16 Eppl_hg Forest_

Date of meeting: 4 June 2015 District Council

Portfolio: Housing

Subject: HCA Investment Partner Qualification

Responsible Officer: P Pledger — Asst Director (Housing Property &
Development) (01992 564248)

Democratic Services: Jackie Leither (01992 564756)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the Cabinet Committee notes that the Council has qualified as an Investment Partner
with the Homes and Communities Agency.

Executive Summary:

This report is making Members aware of the outcome of the Council’s application to the Homes
and Communities Agency (HCA) to become an Investment Partner

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

It was a requirement of the contract with East Thames, as the Council’'s Development Agent,
that they make an application on behalf of the Council to the Homes and Communities Agency
to become and investment Partner so that the Council can apply for Affordable Housing Grant.
This report notes the outcome of that application.

Other Options for Action:
This report is for noting only.

Report:

1.  On behalf of the Council, East Thames have made an application to the Homes and
Communities Agency to become Investment Partners thereby qualifying for Affordable
Housing Grant as part of the HCA'’s Affordable Homes Programme 2015-18.

2. Without this qualification, the Council would not be able to draw on the £500,000 grant that
has been awarded for 40 new 1 and 2-bed homes at Burton Road, Loughton as part of
Phase 2 of the Council’s House-building Programme

3. The application was submitted shortly after the announcement was made by the HCA on
the outcome of the 2015-18 bid round.

4. East Thames Group have received written notification in a letter dated 19 May 2015 that the
Council has now qualified to participate in the Affordable Homes Programme 2015-18 on
the basis that the Council will be working with East Thames Group as its development
partner, which not only secures the £500,000 HCA Grant for Phase 2 but also enables the
Council to make further bids to the HCA for Affordable Homes Grant on future phases of its
House-building Programme should the Council decide.

Page 19



Resource Implications:

e £3,000, being the fee agreed with East Thames Group to make the application for HCA
Partner Status as part of their tender.

Legal and Governance Implications:

HCA Agreement

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

None

Consultation Undertaken:

None

Background Papers:

Contract documents appointing East Thames as the Development Agent
Cabinet Committee decision to apply for HCA Grant

HCA Agreement

Letter dated 19 May 2015 informing East Thames of the outcome of the application

Risk Management:

None. This report is for noting

Page 20



Due Regard Record

This page shows which groups of people are affected by the subject of this
It sets out how they are affected and how any unlawful
discrimination they experience can be eliminated. It also includes
information about how access to the service(s) subject to this report can be
improved for the different groups of people; and how they can be assisted to

report.

understand each other better as a result of the subject of this report.

S149 Equality Act 2010 requires that due regard must be paid to this

information when considering the subject of this report.

Within the Housing Service Strategy, it has been identified that the target groups that
are affected by the Council’s house building programme are people in need of:

affordable housing,

homelessness assistance,

supported housing for special needs groups,
owners and occupiers of poor condition housing
council and housing association tenants.

From that, it was identified that generally, there is an under provision of suitable
accommodation for nearly all target groups. This has been reaffirmed in the most
recent Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

Decision making is affected by funding and other factors, such as the availability of
building land suitable for particular groups e.g. the elderly or young families.

There is no evidence of unlawful discrimination in relation to the provision of
affordable housing.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report to the Council Housebuilding
Cabinet Committee

Report reference: CHB-002-2015/16 Epping Forest

Date of meeting: 4 June 2015 District Council

Portfolio: Housing

Subject: Feasibility Reports — Council House-Building Programme

Responsible Officer: Paul Pledger, Asst. Director of Housing (Property)
(01992 564248)

Democratic Services Officer: Jackie Leither (01992 564756)

Recommendations:

(1) That the Cabinet Committee considers the viability of each of the 9 (nine) individual
feasibility studies taken from the Cabinet approved list of Primary Sites, or has
since been agreed to be added to the list since, as listed below, for consideration
for inclusion in a future phase of the Council House-building Programme;

a) Pound Close, Nazeing

b) Palmers Green, Nazeing

c¢) Millfield, High Ongar

d) St. Peters Avenue, Ongar
e) Queensway, Ongar

f) Graylands, Theydon Bois
g) Green Glade, Theydon Bois
h) Clovers, Matching Green

i) Parkfields (Site A), Roydon

(2) That for any sites not considered viable for Council house-building, alternative uses
be agreed based on the following options:

a. To sell the site for social housing to a Housing Association in return for a
capital receipt to fund future Council house-building and to gain nomination
rights for Council housing applicants;

b. To sell the site for private development, either for residential or other use in
return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

c. To divide up the site and sell the land to local residents to extend their
private gardens in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-
building;

d. To demolish the garages, re-surface and mark out the land and to leave the
site as open car parking for local residents;

e. To sell the site to a Town or Parish Council for their own purposes (eg.
public amenity space) in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council
house-building; or

f. To continue to market and rent the garages to local residents

Page 23



Executive Summary:

Each of the 9 sites included with this report are presented as individual feasibility studies,
which identify the number of units and the mix that achievable for each site, along with the
total scheme cost and the subsidy required to deliver the affordable housing on each site. At
this stage, Members are to consider the merits of each site and agree which are to progress
for inclusion in a future phase of the Council House-building Programme in line with the Policy
on Prioritisation of Sites.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

At its meeting in August 2014, the Cabinet Committee asked that each of the sites on the
Primary List of approved sites be progressed to feasibility stage to create a bank of sites for
future phases of the House-building Programme. The 9 sites included in this report are from
the original list of 65 sites approved by the Cabinet in 2012. Each site is presented on its own
merits at this stage. However, when all of the feasibility studies have been considered, the
Cabinet Committee will then be asked to batch the sites in line with the Policy on Prioritisation
of Sites.

Other Options for Action:

1.

2.

Not to progress with any of the schemes presented in this report.

To develop the sites with a different number of homes, or with an alternative mix of
property types or parking allocation.

Background Report:

1.

3.

At its meeting in July 2012 the Cabinet agreed a list of 65 primary sites for Council-house-
building and also that the Council's Development Agent (once appointed) prepares
feasibility studies on all of those sites.

Furthermore, at its meeting in April 2014, the Cabinet Committee agreed to accelerate the
House-building Programme by increasing the number of homes per year from 20 to 30
over a 10-year programme as opposed to a 6-year programme that was previously the
target. This has resulted in the need to bring forward the feasibility studies for each of the
sites at the request of the Cabinet Committee.

Attached to this report are 9 individual feasibility studies in Nazeing, Ongar, High Ongar,
Theydon Bois, Matching Green and Roydon. Each feasibility study considers the humber
and mix of units capable of being delivered on each site. It also estimates the total
scheme cost for each site along with an estimate of how much subsidy will be required. A
summary table, bringing together all of the key information from the feasibility reports can
be found at appendix 1.

The Cabinet Committee are at this stage only expected to make a decision around which
sites are considered viable and suitable for development. The ultimate decision on
phasing of areas will be undertaken at a future meeting in accordance with the Policy on
Prioritisation of sites agreed by the Cabinet Committee as follows:

a. That locations be grouped together into the following two Groups and the Priority
Orders shown:

Page 24



Group A (Locations with sites that could potentially deliver 10 or more homes):

Priority Location

Loughton
Waltham Abbey
Epping
Buckhurst Hill
Ongar

North Weald

OO WN-=-

Group B (Locations with sites that could potentially deliver less than 10 homes):

Priority Location

Theydon Bois
Nazeing

Roydon

Coppersale

High Ongar
Matching Green/Tye

OO WN =

b. That development packages/phases be formulated each year, on a rotational basis - in
the Priority Order shown in Group A above - until the capacity for the potential number
of homes in a location reduces to less than 10, at which point the location be moved
into Group B.

5. For those sites that are, for whatever reason, not considered to be viable or unsuitable for
redevelopment as part of the Council's House-building Programme, then the Cabinet
Committee is to consider what future use should be investigated based on the following
options:

a. To sell the site for social housing to a Housing Association in return for a capital
receipt to fund future Council house-building and to gain nomination rights for
Council housing applicants;

b. To sell the site for private development, either for residential or other use in return
for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

c. To divide up the site and sell the land to local residents to extend their private
gardens in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;

d. To demolish the garages, re-surface and mark out the land and to leave the site as
open car parking for local residents;

e. To sell the site to a Town or Parish Council for their own purposes (eg. public
amenity space) in return for a capital receipt to fund future Council house-building;
or

f. To continue to market and rent the garages to local residents

6. It is important to point out that whilst each of these feasibility reports are for sites that are
all based in Nazeing, Ongar, High Ongar, Theydon Bois, Matching Green and Roydon,
prioritisation will be in line with the established Policy on the Prioritisation of Sites agreed
by the Cabinet Committee, and will be subject to a further decision on how these sites will
be batched and phased.

7. The final 12 Feasibility studies for sites in other parts of the district, which completes the
list of 65-sites identified for Council house-building will follow in the July.

Page 25



Resource Implications:

The sum of the works costs and fees will be made available at the meeting. However, the
actual costs and the year in which it will be expended will be determined at a future date.

Legal and Governance Implications:

Within its Terms of Reference, the House-Building Cabinet Committee is expected to consider
each site and package of works and either approve it to progress to detailed planning stage or
agree an alternative use.

Safer, Cleaner and Greener Implications:

The sites being considered are currently used as garage blocks, rented to garage tenants. A
large proportion of the site contains a former Council depot and garages which are either
vacant or not used to park vehicles (Source: ECC Parking Standards) Redeveloping these
garages and/or amenity land will add value to and enhance the local environment and
streetscape.

Consultation Undertaken:
None
Background Papers:

Development Strategy, along with the following Policies:
o Affordable Rents Policy;
Funding the House-building Programme;
Accelerating the House-building Programme;
Future use of garage sites unsuitable for redevelopment; and
Prioritisation of sites

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

Within the financial viability assessment, the greatest risks are that the assumptions prove to
be incorrect resulting in each site being un-viable.

These risks are mitigated by the Council being able to either add more subsidy or not to
progress the works beyond the planning stage.

In addition, a site specific risk register has been compiled and included within the individual
feasibility reports.

Each of the feasibility studies are also subject to further legal checks to identify and tackle
issues such as rights of way, licencing, closing access points and land-grabbing.

Page 26



Due Regard Record

This page shows which groups of people are affected by the subject of this
report. It sets out how they are affected and how any unlawful discrimination
they experience can be eliminated. It also includes information about how access
to the service(s) subject to this report can be improved for the different groups of
people; and how they can be assisted to understand each other better as a
result of the subject of this report.

S149 Equality Act 2010 requires that due regard must be paid to this information
when considering the subject of this report.

Within the Housing Service Strategy, it has been identified that the target groups that are
affected by the Council’s house building programme are people in need of:

- Affordable Housing,

- Homelessness assistance,

- Supported housing for special needs groups,

- Owners and occupiers of poor condition housing

- Council and housing association tenants.

From that, it was identified that generally, there is an under provision of suitable
accommodation for nearly all target groups. This has been reaffirmed in the most recent
Strategic Housing Market Assessment.

Decision making is affected by funding and other factors, such as the availability of
building land suitable for particular groups e.g. the elderly or young families.

There is no evidence of unlawful discrimination in relation to the provision of affordable
housing.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: Palmers Grove, Nazeing EN9 2QF

Ref: 1JC/srs/612.023
Date: January 2015

Page 29



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

© N o o bk~ w0 Db~

Proposed Procurement Route
9. Impact on Parking

10. Legals

11. Costs

12. Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A: Development Proposals — Drawing 612.023/P4 27 Revision A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan —210206014-AZ
D: Information on Possible Contamination
E: Cost Build-up

J Date Initial

f Written by ’ 14/01/15 NP
' B
|

| Checked by 04/02/15 1C

Please note:
Unless otherwise stated all drawings, images and diagrams contained within this document are not to scale.

This document is the property and copyright of Pellings LLP

Page 30



1.0

1.1.

1:2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District Council
for a 6-10 year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having possible
development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP has been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites, which
will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

This site is located to the eastern edge of the residential area of Lower Nazeing.
Palmers Grove surrounds the site and properties fronting the road back onto the
site.

The site is accessed by a narrow drive approximately 50 meters in length. The site is
formed of three blocks of garages with concrete hard standing to the centre and an
area of scrub/grass land to the north which gives rear access to a number of
properties, both vehicular and pedestrian. A substation is located to the south
western corner where a pedestrian footpath enters the site.

The general surrounding area consists of semi-detached and terraced dwellings
dating from the 1950’s.

Proposals
The proposals are as shown on drawing 612.023/P4-27 Revision A and comprise :

e 4 x 3 bed 2-storey terraced houses @ 93m?
e 9 parking spaces

Due to the constraints of the site, it is unlikely that turning space for fire appliances
and refuse vehicles will be achieved. Accordingly a sprinkler system may need to
be provided.

The vehicular access referenced above is not retained within proposals.

Proposals maintain the pedestrian access adjacent the substation

Planning Issues and Risks

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest Council is the Combined Local
Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is identified as being within an area that floods on the Local Plan proposals
map but not on the Environment Agency planning flood map. It can therefore be
considered that the site is not at risk of flooding.

Page 31

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Palmers Grove 1



4.3. The site has no site specific policies however consideration will need to be given to
the following policies where they comply with the NPPF:

e ST4 (Road Safety) — States the planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion
or harm to the character or appearance of the area.

e CP7 (Urban Form and Quality) — Encourages the efficient use of existing
built-up areas by the recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-
used land to accommodate the redevelopment of and re-use of urban
sites, which are no longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in
the foreseeable future, for alternative land uses.

e H4A (Dwelling Mix) — States the needs for a range of dwellings, including
an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet identified housing
need on a site-by-site basis.

4.4, It will be necessary to undertake a parking survey and prepare a transport statement
to demonstrate that the loss of parking would not be detrimental to highway
conditions or the amenities in the area because of a lack of parking.

4.5, The site is located within the urban area of Lower Nazeing and would comply with
policy CP7.

4.6. The site would comply with policy H4A providing additional family housing.
5.0 Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
5.1. We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Vodaphone

BT Openreach

National Grid

UK Power Networks

Virgin Media

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE)
Environment Agency

Thames Water

Responses have been received as follows :

5.2. Vodaphone: No issues.

5.3. BT Openreach: No issues.

5.4. National Grid: No issues.

5.5. UK Power Networks: No issues.
5.6. Virgin Media: No response

5.7, SSE: No issue

5.8. Environment Agency: No response

Page 32

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Palmers Grove 2



5.9.

5.10.

6.0

6.1.

B.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

T2,

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

Thames Water: No issue.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be any
particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic associated
with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and within
normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues have
been highlighted with use of the domestic garages. Possible contaminants indicated
within the note produced by EFDC Planning and Economic Development
Directorate at Appendix D.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may include
asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal with
any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our proposals
do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles. Accordingly, subject
to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may be required along with
sprinkler provision to the new house or houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/ P4-27 Revision A it is not considered that
Party Wall matters will be relevant to the development.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East Thames
Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage 3 planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer’'s Requirements to be subsequently
confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East Thames
Housing Group Design Standards and Employer's Requirement documentation.

Page 33

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Palmers Grove 3



8.4.

8.5,

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2

9.3.

9.4.

9.5,

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual contract
packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory services,
highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure size
of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East Thames
Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide — September
2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as statutory planning
guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e \Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest whole
number)

The proposals would appear to meet the Council's parking standards for new
development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking surveys,
to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any planning or
highway problems.

Cycle parking will need to be provided at 1 secure covered space per dwelling if a
garage or secure area is not provided within the curtilage of the dwelling.

1 covered visitor cycle space will need to be provided per 8 dwellings if no secure
space is provided for each dwelling.

Legals

We have not been provided with a Housing Management Report and Legals
Checklist for this site.

Legal matters would therefore need to be checked to ensure there are no
encumbrances that affect redevelopment of the site.

Page 34

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Palmers Grove 4



11.0 Costs

11.1. It is considered that a budget of £791,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix E.

12.0 Recommendations and Conclusions

12.1. Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Y7
e -
Signed:  .ceeeeeeen. //,. AN
For Pellings'LLP
-
{ Q/) p ) A s (J "':‘;
Date : '%j:cw’“f“\" ......
Page 35

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Palmers Grove 5



Appendix A
Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P4-27 Revision A

Page 36



|
vl L¢vdlgeolelg | s ,
% dN_|ev® oogih oz owmzis sue|d pesodoid pue Bupsixg wm: — _ —wl 1 I
o e u wog s ! iA
o VH ssweyliseg i =




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 38



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 39






Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 41



Epping Forest
District Council




Appendix D

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District Council by
way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential contamination across all the
primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination issues are to
be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites that move
forward to Planning Applications.

Page 43



Appendix E

Cost Build-up

Page 44



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Palmer Grove Nazeing

|Accommodation Summary Nr m2 ft2|
Affordable Apartments ] see accommodation
Affordable Houses 4 372 4,004
Bungalows ] schedule below
TOTAL GIFA 4 372 4,004
BUDGET COST ALLOWANCES
[ Item [Description : | Qy [  Unit | Rate | Totals |
1.00 Enabling Works
1.01 Demolition of existing garages 25 Nr £650 £16,250
1.02 Allowance for removal of asbestos 25 Nr £350 £8,750
1.03 Site clearance 1,571 m2 £15 £23,565
Sub-total £48,565

2.00 Construction
2.01 Apartments

Private areas m2 £1,150
Communal areas (20% allowed) m2 £750
2.02 Houses 372 m2 £1,050 £390,600
2.03 Bunglaows m2 £950
Sub-total £390,600
3.00 Abnormals
3.01 Allowance for contaminated ground Item Excluded
3.02 Extra Over for wall:floor ratio (> 85%) 25 m2 £250 £6,250
3.03 Allowance for enhanced external fabric finish m2 £30 no allowance
3.04 Extra for wheelchair unit adaptations Nr £6,000 no allowance
3.05 Passenger lift serving apartments Nr £75,000 not required
3.06 Measures to achieve CfSH Level 4 4 Nr £2,500 £10,000
3.07 Balconies (average 4m2 each) Nr £2,200 no allowance
3.08 PV panels to roof m2 £750 no allowance
3.09 Extra Over for thin joint construction Nr £400 no allowance
3.10 Extra over cost for excavating and removing 724 m2 £20 £14,480

tarmac road surface

Sub-total £30,730

4.00 External Works (see build up overleaf) £169,595
5.00 Contractor's Preliminaries

5.01 Site set up, running costs, management, etc. 40 weeks £1,605 £64,200

5.02 Scaffolding 342 m2 £30 £10,260

5.03 Hoardings 256 m £60 £15,360

Sub-total £89,820

£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 1,961 182 729,310

(Excluding FF&E, Fees, etc.)

Page 45

Palmer Grove Feasibilty - Issue 01 1 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Palmer Grove Nazeing

6.00 Other Costs

6.01 Client FF&E (white goods, etc.) Item Excluded
6.02 Telecoms / ICT / Security Item Excluded
6.03 Contingency Allowance 5.0% £36,466
6.04 Contractor's Design Fees 4.0% £25,580
Totals £791,355

£/unit £/m2
TOTAL INDICATIVE BUDGET COST (say) 197,750 2,126 £791,000

Refer to below for Clarifications, Assumptions and Exclusions

EXTERNAL WORKS

[ Item |Description | Qy | Unit | Rate | Totals |
4.01 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 682 m2 £45 £30,690
4.02 Communal soft landscaping 237 m2 £25 £5,925
4.03 Allowance for planting Item £1,500 no allowance
4.04 Allowance for communal drying area Nr £3,500 no allowance
4.05 Access road, parking and turning - adaptations 453 m2 £65 £29,445
4.06 Pedestrian paving - adaptations 50 m2 £45 £2,250
4.07 Cross over / highways adaptations ltem £1,500
4.08 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 256 m £120 £30,720
4.09 External bins store Nr £2,500 no allowance
4.10 Cycle store Nr £1,500 no allowance
4.11 Foul water drainage 372 m2 £65 £24.180
4.12 External surface water drainage 721 m2 £40 £28,840
4.13 Attenuation tanks, etc ltem excluded
4.14 External lighting 503 m2 £15 £7,545
4.15 Utilities mains supplies 4 Nr £2,500 £10,000
4.16 New Substation Nr Excluded

Sub-total £169,595
[Description | Nr | GIA | Sub-Totals | Totals |
Flats/Maisonettes
1B 2P Flat 53 m?
2B 4P Flat 73 m?

Allowance for communal space

Houses
2B 4P House 77 m?
3B 5P House 4 Nr 93 m? 372 372
4 Nr
Bungalow: 2B
4 Nr 372
Page 46

Palmer Grove Feasibilty - Issue 01 2 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Palmer Grove Nazeing

CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimate based on:

6Pellings Drawing No. 612023.P4-26A

We have not had an opportunity to visit the site but photographs have been made available. We have also utilised Google
Earth to inform allowances.

GIFA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on 1Q 2015 prices with no allowance for future cost fluctuations

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 4

Cost include for OH&P @ 7%

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber or beam / block floor
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Assumed no Asbestos removal required, unless otherwise stated

No allowance has been made for designated child play space

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, 278 and other Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Commercial Commentary

PLLP is mindful that the construction industry is becoming increasingly volatile. We are seeing increasingly lengthy lead
in times for materials (in particular due to reduced brick and block stocks) which is having an effect on tender prices.

That said this project is likely to be attractive to the Contractors' various supply chains and should therefore stimulate an
element of healthy competition.

However, we would suggest that the Client retains a reasonable, undeclared Contingency to offset the potential risk that
market forces will increase tender prices.

Pellings LLP www.pellings.co.uk

Architecture & Planning ® Interior Design ® Building Surveying ™ Project Management B
Cost Consultancy ® Health & Safety

24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY t 020 8460 9114 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Page 47

Palmer Grove Feasibilty - Issue 01 3 16-01-15



This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: Pound Close, Nazeing EN9 2HR

Ref. 1JC/srs/612.023
Date: January 2015

Page 49



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

© N o o bk~ 0w Db =

Proposed Procurement Route
9. Impact on Parking

10. Legals

11. Costs

12. Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A Development Proposals — Drawing 612.023/P4-26 Revision A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan —210206014-AY
D: Information on Possible Contamination
E: Cost Build-up
] pate | mital |
’7 Written by 1: 14/01/15 NP7
‘ Checked by 04/02/15 | 1C
Please note:

Unless otherwise stated all drawings, images and diagrams contained within this document are not to scale.

This document is the property and copyright of Pellings LLP

Page 50



1.0

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

Bl

2.3.

3.0

3.1.

3.2,

3.3.

3.4.

4.0

4.1.

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District Council
for a 6-10 year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having possible
development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP has been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites, which
will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

This site is located to the southern edge of the residential area of Lower Nazeing to
the south eastern corner of Pound Close. The site is formed of two rows of garages
to the east and west with hard standing in between. An area of scrub land lies to the
south which forms part of the site with open space beyond. To the east and west of
the site are residential properties and gardens.

The character of the surrounding area is semi-detached and terraced dwellings with
gardens to the front and rear and some with parking to the front.

The access is to the north eastern corner of the site and a public footpath enters at
the north western corner.

Proposals
The proposals are as shown on drawing 612.023/P4-26 Revision A and comprise :

e 2 x 3 bed 2-storey semi-detached houses @ 93m?
e 3 x 2 bed 2-storey terraced houses @ 77m?
e 12 parking spaces

Due to the constraints of the site, it is unlikely that turning space for fire appliances
and refuse vehicles will be achieved. Accordingly a sprinkler system may need to
be provided.

Design proposals will need to recognise the windows in the flank elevations of
existing buildings.

A foul and surface water sewer cross the site adjacent the North boundary however
these do not affect design proposals.

Planning Issues and Risks

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest Council is the Combined Local
Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

Page 51

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Pound Close 1



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

8.3,

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

The site is identified as being within an area that floods on the Local Plan proposals
map but not on the Environment Agency planning flood map. It can therefore be
considered that the site is not at risk of flooding.

The site has no site specific policies however consideration will need to be given to
the following policies where they comply with the NPPF:

ST4 (Road Safety) — States the planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion
or harm to the character or appearance of the area.

CP7 (Urban Form and Quality) — Encourages the efficient use of existing
built-up areas by the recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-
used land to accommodate the redevelopment of and re-use of urban
sites, which are no longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in
the foreseeable future, for alternative land uses.

H4A (Dwelling Mix) — States the needs for a range of dwellings, including
an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet identified housing
need on a site-by-site basis.

It will be necessary to undertake a parking survey and prepare a transport statement
to demonstrate that the loss of parking would not be detrimental to highway
conditions or the amenities in the area because of a lack of parking.

The site is located to the edge of the urban area and would comply with policy CP7.

The site would comply with policy H4A providing additional family housing.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Vodaphone

BT Openreach

National Grid

UK Power Networks

Virgin Media

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE)
Environment Agency

Thames Water

Responses have been received as follows :

Vodaphone: No issues.

BT Openreach: No issues.

National Grid: No issues.

UK Power Networks: No issues.

Virgin Media: No response

SSE: No issue

Page 52

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Pound Close 2



5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

6.0

6.1.

6.2,

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1

1 s

7.3

7.4.

Environment Agency: No response
Thames Water: Foul and surface water sewer adjacent north boundary

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be any
particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic associated
with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and within
normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues have
been highlighted with use of the domestic garages. Possible contaminants indicated
within the note produced by EFDC Planning and Economic Development
Directorate at Appendix D.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may include
asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal with
any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Proposals do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles.
Accordingly, subject to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may be
required along with sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P4-26 Revision A, Party Wall matters will be
relevant to the development, particularly adjacent to No. 14A Pound Close

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.
Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with

within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk to
programme and cost.

Page 53

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Pound Close 3



8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East Thames
Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage 3 planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be subsequently
confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East Thames
Housing Group Design Standards and Employer’s Requirement documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual contract
packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory services,
highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure size
of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East Thames
Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’'s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council’s Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide — September
2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as statutory planning
guidance in February 2012,

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest whole
number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking surveys,
to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any planning or
highway problems.

Page 54

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Pound Close 4



9.5.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

Signed :

Date :

Cycle parking will need to be provided at 1 secure covered space per dwelling if a
garage or secure area is not provided within the curtilage of the dwelling.

1 covered visitor cycle space will need to be provided per 8 dwellings if no secure
space is provided for each dwelling.

Legals

We have not been provided with a Housing Management Report and Legals
Checklist for this site.

Legal matters would therefore need to be checked to ensure there are no
encumbrances that affect redevelopment of the site.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £841,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix E.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

V&

V)
4/£;:>T, ..................
For Pellings LLP
“’f\[ftf?%‘g ......

Page 55

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Pound Close 5



Appendix A
Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P4-26 Revision A

Page 56



POUND CLOSE

|
pOUND CLOSE el & '\\

4

n Projoct Manngomont

ding Stirvoylng
jon

‘ oK

SCRE AN
DEC 2014 [ 1:500 @A3 NP

ORAWNGNS

"¢ EFDC House Building

DATE

612|023 |P4-26 \A_]

East Thames HA
Pound Close
Nazeing

e Existing and Proposed Plans

R

Pellings

Name

Description

Rev Date

o s

25m

>_
i
<
Z
=
_
i
e
o




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 58



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 59



4.

RS o o o 2 i




Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 61



rook

Epping Forest

District Council

N\\L]

il

Rosemont 3

1
L1
Netherbrook

=

/

Falrpenny

Thelitie RookerY

The Cherries

geatiude

e Cedars

30

Greenfields Villa

27.7m

Wilbea

Little Cutiands

Cutlands G
[

Grazebrook

New Cutlands

Clovelly

Lynton E

SosnoH pleysiel

QD
[

o spunoa 4

WAJE
|

FB

Yneﬁl_l—_’ 7/

&
ko

b4

Naz

U A
T

1

38010 GNNOd

[

- EX743176

Mulbelries

Cranbrook

Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011

M EFDC License No: 100018534 2011

Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date

Civic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Pound Close 04/07/12
High Strest Building Program Nazeing Scale

Epping, Essex, 1:1250 @ A4
CM16 4BZ Drawing No. .
Tel. 01992 564000 Drawn By

201206015 A R Robert Irwin
=) o




Appendix D

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District Council by
way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential contamination across all the
primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination issues are to
be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites that move
forward to Planning Applications.

Page 63



Appendix E

Cost Build-up

Page 64



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings
Pound Close Nazeing
[Accommodation Summary Nr m2 ft2|
Affordable Apartments ] see accommodation
Affordable Houses 5 417 4,489
Bungalows ] schedule below
TOTAL GIFA 5 417 4,489
BUDGET COST ALLOWANCES
[ ltem |Description | Qy | Unit | Rate | Totals |
1.00 Enabling Works
1.01 Demolition of existing garages & storage shed 12 Nr £650 £7,800
1.02 Allowance for removal of asbestos 12 Nr £350 £4,200
1.03 Site clearance 1,289 m2 £15 £19,335
Sub-total £31,335
2.00 Construction
2.01 Apartments
Private areas m2 £1,150
Communal areas (20% allowed) m2 £750
2.02 Houses 417 m2 £1,050 £437,850
2.03 Bunglaows m2 £950
Sub-total £437,850
3.00 Abnormals
3.01 Allowance for contaminated ground ltem Excluded
3.02 Extra Over for wall:floor ratio (> 85%) 144 m2 £250 £36,000
3.03 Allowance for enhanced external fabric finish m2 £30 no allowance
3.04 Extra for wheelchair unit adaptations Nr £6,000 no allowance
3.05 Passenger lift serving apartments Nr £75,000 not required
3.06 Measures to achieve CfSH Level 4 5 Nr £2,500 £12,500
3.07 Balconies (average 4m2 each) Nr £2,200 no allowance
3.08 PV panels to roof m2 £750 no allowance
3.09 Extra Over for thin joint construction Nr £400 no allowance
3.10 Extra over cost for excavating and removing 347 m2 £20 £6,940
concrete road surface
Sub-total £55,440
4,00 External Works (see build up overleaf) £160,000
5.00 Contractor's Preliminaries
5.01 Site set up, running costs, management, etc. 40 weeks £1,605 £64,200
5.02 Scaffolding 499 m2 £30 £14,970
5.03 Hoardings 183 m £60 £10,980
Sub-total £90,150
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 1,858 173 774,775

(Excluding FF&E, Fees, etc.)

Page 65

Pound Close Feasibilty - Issue 01 1 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings
Pound Close Nazeing

6.00 Other Costs
6.01 Client FF&E (white goods, etc.) Item Excluded
6.02 Telecoms / ICT / Security Item Excluded
6.03 Contingency Allowance 5.0% £38,739
6.04 Contractor's Design Fees 4.0% £27,385
Totals £840,899

£/unit £/m2

TOTAL INDICATIVE BUDGET COST (say) 168,200 2,017 £841,000

Refer to below for Clarifications, Assumptions and Exclusions

EXTERNAL WORKS

| Item |Description [ Qy | Unit | Rate | Totals |
4.01 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 314 m2 £45 £14,130
4.02 Communal soft landscaping 109 m2 £25 £2,725
4.03 Allowance for planting Item £1,500 no allowance
4.04 Allowance for communal drying area Nr £3,500 no allowance
4.05 Access road, parking and turning - adaptations 492 m2 £65 £31,980
4.06 Pedestrian paving - adaptations 129 m2 £45 £5,805
4.07 Cross over / highways adaptations Item £1,500
4.08 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 183 m £120 £21,960
4.09 External bins store Nr £2,500 no allowance
4.10 Cycle store Nr £1,500 no allowance
4.11 Foul water drainage 417 m2 £65 £27,105
4.12 External surface water drainage 862 m2 £40 £34,480
4.13 Attenuation tanks, etc Item excluded
4.14 External lighting 621 m2 £15 £9,315
4.15 Utilities mains supplies 5 Nr £2,500 £12,500
4.16 New Substation Nr Excluded
Sub-total £160,000
[Description [ Nr | GIA | Sub-Totals | Totals |
Flats/Maisonettes
1B 2P Flat 53 m?
2B 4P Flat 73 m?

Allowance for communal space

Houses
2B 4P House 3 Nr 77 m? 231
3B 5P House 2 Nr 93 m? 186 417
5Nr
Bungalow: 2B
5Nr 417
Page 66

Pound Close Feasibilty - Issue 01 2 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Pound Close Nazeing
CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUNMPTIONS

Estimate based on:

6Pellings Drawing No. 612023.P4-26A

We have not had an opportunity to visit the site but photographs have been made available. We have also utilised Google
Earth to inform allowances.

GIFA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on 1Q 2015 prices with no allowance for future cost fluctuations

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 4

Cost include for OH&P @ 7%

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber or beam / block floor
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Assumed no Asbestos removal required, unless otherwise stated

No allowance has been made for designated child play space

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by statutory bodies

Costs of Section 108, 278 and other Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Commercial Commentary

PLLP is mindful that the construction industry is becoming increasingly volatile. We are seeing increasingly lengthy lead
in times for materials (in particular due to reduced brick and block stocks) which is having an effect on tender prices.

That said this project is likely to be attractive to the Contractors' various supply chains and should therefore stimulate an
element of healthy competition.

However, we would suggest that the Client retains a reasonable, undeclared Contingency to offset the potential risk that
market forces will increase tender prices.

Pellings LLP www.pellings.co.uk

Architecture & Planning B [nterior Design B Building' Surveying M Project Management
Cost Consultancy ® Health & Safety

24 \Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY t 020 8460 9114 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Page 67

Pound Close Feasibilty - Issue 01 3 16-01-15



This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: Millfield, High Ongar CM5 9RJ

Ref. IJC/srs/612.023
Date: January 2015

Page 69



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

© N o o ks~ 0w DN~

Proposed Procurement Route
9. Impact on Parking

10. Legals

11. Costs

12. Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A Development Proposals — Drawing 612.023/P4-28 Revision A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan —210206014-BD
D: Information on Possible Contamination
E: Cost Build-up

T T
Date ‘ Initial |
i Written by 14/01/15 | NP
i Checked by 04/02/15 | UC
»

Please note:
Unless otherwise stated all drawings, images and diagrams contained within this document are not to scale.

This document is the property and copyright of Pellings LLP

Page 70



1.0

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1

2.2.

3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District Council
for a 6-10 year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having possible
development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP has been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites, which
will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located to the southern end of High Ongar, off Millfield. The site is backed
onto by properties fronting Millfield and Mill Lane and is accessed via a narrow drive
from Millfield adjacent 48 and 49. It provides access to a rear parking area of 39
Millfield. High Ongar is located to the east of Chipping Ongar and forms a small
conurbation with a church, primary school and village store.

The immediate surrounding area consists of semi-detached and terraced dwellings
from the 1950’s with a range of properties to the available in the main village to the
north.

Proposals

The proposals are as shown on drawing 612.023/P4-28 Revision A and comprise :

e 1 x2 bed Bungalow @ 68m?
e 5 parking spaces

Due to the constraints of the site, it is unlikely that turning space for fire appliances
and refuse vehicles will be achieved. Accordingly a sprinkler system may need to
be provided.

Design proposals have retained the existing vehicular access serving 39 Millfield

Planning Issues and Risks

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest Council is the Combined Local
Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not identified as being in an area at risk of flooding.

The site has no site specific policies however consideration will need to be given to
the following policies where they comply with the NPPF:

e ST4 (Road Safety) — States the planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion
or harm to the character or appearance of the area.

Page 71

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Millfield 1



e CP7 (Urban Form and Quality) — Encourages the efficient use of existing
built-up areas by the recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-
used land to accommodate the redevelopment of and re-use of urban
sites, which are no longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in
the foreseeable future, for alternative land uses.

e H4A (Dwelling Mix) — States the needs for a range of dwellings, including
an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet identified housing
need on a site-by-site basis.

4.4, It will be necessary to undertake a parking survey and prepare a transport statement
to demonstrate that the loss of parking would not be detrimental to highway
conditions or the amenities in the area because of a lack of parking.

4.5, The site is located to the edge of the urban area and would comply with policy CP7.
4.6. The site would comply with policy H4A providing additional family housing.

5.0 Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

51. We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Vodaphone

BT Openreach

National Grid

UK Power Networks

Virgin Media

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE)
Environment Agency

Thames Water

Responses have been received as follows :

5.2. Vodaphone: No issues.

5.3. BT Openreach: No issues.

5.4. National Grid: No issues.

5.5. UK Power Networks: No issues.

5.6. Virgin Media: No response

5.7. SSE: No issue

5.8. Environment Agency: No response

5.9. Thames Water: No issue

5.10. It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of

preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Page 72

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Millfield 2



6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

{3

7.4.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be any
particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic associated
with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and within
normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues have
been highlighted with use of the domestic garages. Possible contaminants indicated
within the note produced by EFDC Planning and Economic Development
Directorate at Appendix D.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may include
asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal with
any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our proposals
do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles. Accordingly, subject
to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may be required along with
sprinkler provision to the new house or houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/ P4-28 Revision A it is not considered that
Party Wall matters will be relevant to the development.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.

Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with
within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk to
programme and cost.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East Thames
Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the

contractors taking forward RIBA Stage 3 planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Page 73

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Millfield 3



8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2,

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be subsequently
confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East Thames
Housing Group Design Standards and Employer’'s Requirement documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual contract
packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory services,
highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure size
of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East Thames
Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council’s Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide — September
2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as statutory planning
guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest whole
number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking surveys,
to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any planning or
highway problems.

Cycle parking will need to be provided at 1 secure covered space per dwelling if a
garage or secure area is not provided within the curtilage of the dwelling.

1 covered visitor cycle space will need to be provided per 8 dwellings if no secure
space is provided for each dwelling.

Legals

We have not been provided with a Housing Management Report and Legals
Checklist for this site.

Legal matters would therefore need to be checked to ensure there are no
encumbrances that affect redevelopment of the site.

Page 74

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Millfield 4



11.0

11.1.

12.0

12,1

Signed :

Date :

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £261,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix F.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

------- A n s NN SN NN EE NN EENEEENEEEEEEEEEEEENN

For Pellings LLP

Page 75

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Millfield 5



Appendix A
Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P4-28 Revision A

Page 76



-

417 SINTI3d 40 4uBlaAdo3 ae Ufisap pue Guimedp sIL

<_ WNI.V& _ MHNO 7 N —‘smgé ._mmc%mu_ﬂ_w___n | I

>0 _

Buipling 8snoH 0a43 ..., WH seweyLise3

dN T<@ 0081 7 10z 030 sue|d pasodold pue Buysixg mm C — — —m
N awos ava e l wog wez
- )
o -

i

AGVYNINITEEd

aleN uopduosaq  sleq A9y




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 78



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Lsr

UTTITTRNITHIY




Page 80



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 81



Epping Forest
District Council

Camp Site

0 The Windmill Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data

Gotiags The Mill © Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011

O - m Cottage EFDC License No: 100018534 2011

Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date

Civic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Millfield 04/07/12

Rligh st Building Program High Ongar Scale

% 1:1250 @ A4

CM16 4BZ Drawing No.

Tel. 01992 564000 Drawn By
20120601&&‘&3 Q9 Robert Irwin

Fetge-o<




Appendix D

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District Council by
way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential contamination across all the
primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination issues are to
be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites that move
forward to Planning Applications.

Page 83



Appendix E

Cost Build-up

Page 84



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Millfield High Ongar

Pellings

] see accommodation

732 ] schedule below

[Accommodation Summary Nr m2 ft2|
Affordable Apartments

Affordable Houses

Bungalows 68

TOTAL GIFA 68 732

BUDGET COST ALLOWANCES

[ Item |Description | Qty | Unit | Rate | Totals
1.00 Enabling Works
1.01 Demolition of existing garages 12 Nr £650 £7,800
1.02 Allowance for removal of asbestos 12 Nr £350 £4,200
1.03 Site clearance 729 m2 £15 £10,935
Sub-total £22,935
2.00 Construction
2.01 Apartments
Private areas m2 £1,150
Communal areas (20% allowed) m2 £750
2.02 Houses m2 £1,050
2.03 Bunglaows 68 m2 £950 £64,600
Sub-total £64,600
3.00 Abnormals
3.01 Allowance for contaminated ground Item Excluded
3.02 Extra Over for wall:floor ratio (> 85%) 54 m2 £250 £13,500
3.03 Allowance for enhanced external fabric finish m2 £30 no allowance
3.04 Extra for wheelchair unit adaptations Nr £6,000 no allowance
3.05 Passenger lift serving apartments Nr £75,000 not required
3.06 Measures to achieve CfSH Level 4 1 Nr £2,500 £2,500
3.07 Balconies (average 4m2 each) Nr £2,200 no allowance
3.08 PV panels to roof m2 £750 no allowance
3.09 Extra Over for thin joint construction Nr £400 no allowance
3.10 Extra over cost for excavating and removing 588 m2 £20 £11,760
tarmac road surface
Sub-total £27,760
4.00 External Works (see build up overleaf) £90,315
5.00 Contractor's Preliminaries
5.01 Site set up, running costs, management, etc. 26 weeks £850 £22,100
5.02 Scaffolding 112 m2 £30 £3,360
5.03 Hoardings 158 m £60 £9,480
Sub-total £34,940
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 3,538 329 240,550
(Excluding FF&E, Fees, etc.)
Page 85
Millfield Feasibilty - Issue 01 1 16-01-15




FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01

East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Millfield High Ongar

6.00 Other Costs
6.01 Client FF&E (white goods, etc.)

6.02 Telecoms / ICT / Security
6.03 Contingency Allowance
6.04 Contractor's Design Fees

TOTAL INDICATIVE BUDGET COST

Totals

(say)

Refer to below for Clarifications, Assumptions and Exclusions

EXTERNAL WORKS

Pellings

ltem Excluded
ltem Excluded
5.0% £12,028
4.0% £8,224
£260,802

£/unit £/m2
261,000 3,838 £261,000

[ Item [Description | Qty | Unit | Rate | Totals |
4.01 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 148 m2 £45 £6,660
4.02 Communal soft landscaping 43 m2 £25 £1,075
4.03 Allowance for planting ltem £1,500 no allowance
4.04 Allowance for communal drying area Nr £3,500 no allowance
4.05 Access road, parking and turning - adaptations 377 m2 £65 £24,505
4.06 Pedestrian paving - adaptations 83 m2 £45 £3,735
4.07 Cross over / highways adaptations ltem £1,500
4.08 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 158 m £120 £18,960
4.09 External bins store Nr £2,500 no allowance
4.10 Cycle store Nr £1,500 no allowance
4.11 Foul water drainage 68 m2 £65 £4,420
4.12 External surface water drainage 539 m2 £40 £21,560
4.13 Attenuation tanks, etc ltem excluded
4.14 External lighting 460 m2 £15 £6,900
4.15 Utilities mains supplies 1 Nr £2,500 £2,500
4.16 New Substation Nr Excluded

Sub-total £90,315

ACCOMMODATION SCHEDULE

| Description | Nr | GIA | Sub-Totals | Totals |

Flats/Maisonettes

1B 2P Flat 53 m?

2B 4P Flat 73 m?

Allowance for communal space

Houses

2B 4P House 77 m?

3B 5P House 93 m?

Bungalow: 2B 1 Nr 68 m? 68 68
68

Page 86
Millfield Feasibilty - Issue 01 2 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Millfield High Ongar
CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimate based on:

6Pellings Drawing No. 612023.P4-28A

We have not had an opportunity to visit the site but photographs have been made available. We have also utilised Google
Earth to inform allowances.

GIFA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on 1Q 2015 prices with no allowance for future cost fluctuations

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 4

Cost include for OH&P @ 7%

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber or beam / block floor
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Assumed no Asbestos removal required, unless otherwise stated

No allowance has been made for designated child play space

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by statutory bodies

Costs of Section 1086, 278 and other Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Commercial Commentary

PLLP is mindful that the construction industry is becoming increasingly volatile. We are seeing increasingly lengthy lead
in times for materials (in particular due to reduced brick and block stocks) which is having an effect on tender prices.

That said this project is likely to be attractive to the Contractors' various supply chains and should therefore stimulate an
element of healthy competition.

However, we would suggest that the Client retains a reasonable, undeclared Contingency to offset the potential risk that
market forces will increase tender prices.

Pellings LLP www.pellings.co.uk

Architecture & Planning ® Interior Design B Building Surveying M Project Management
Cost Consultancy ™ Health & Safety

24 \Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY t 020 8460 9114 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Page 87

Millfield Feasibilty - Issue 01 8 16-01-15



This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: St Peters Avenue, Ongar CM5 0BT

Ref: [JC/srs/612.023
Date: January 2015

Page 89



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

Proposed Procurement Route

© o N o gk~ 0N =

. Impact on Parking
10. Legals
11. Costs

12. Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A Development Proposals — Drawing 612.023/P4-29P Revision A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan — 210206014-BF
D: Information on Possible Contamination
E: Cost Build-up
Date | initil

|
| Written by
|

e I
} Checked by
L

Please note:
Unless otherwise stated all drawings, images and diagrams contained within this document are not to scale.

This document is the property and copyright of Pellings LLP

Page 90



1.0

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

3.0

3.1.

8.2,

3.3

3.4.

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District Council
for a 6-10 year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having possible
development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP has been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites, which
will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located within Chipping Ongar to the rear of houses fronting St Peters
Avenue which is located to the north of Chipping Ongar.

The site is accessed from St Peters Avenue and the west of the site is formed of
garage blocks to two sides with hardstanding between.

To the east of the site is a community orchard that has been planted in the last few
years access for vehicles and pedestrians is via the garage forecourt.

The general surrounding area consists of apartments, semi-detached and terraced
dwellings dating from the 1950’s.

Proposals
The proposals are as shown on drawing 612.023/P4-29P Revision A and comprise :

e 8 x 3 bed 2-storey terraced houses @ 93m?
e 23 parking spaces

Given the linear nature of the site and the number of dwellings proposed it is
considered that the current access will need to be widened to adequately serve the
development. This would require negotiation with the council tenant residing at 44 St
Peters Avenue.

Alternatively negotiation with the private owner at 42 St Peters Avenue would also
allow for the widening of the existing access. A further option would be to access the
site via a new access created from space available at 13 Moreton Road subject to
negotiation with the owner.

If the access to the site is unable to be resolved a smaller scheme of three units in

the west part of the site could use the existing access whilst retaining the community
orchard.

Page 91

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities St Peters Avenue 1



4.0

4.1.

4.2

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

5.0

5.1.

9.2

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6,

Planning Issues and Risks

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest Council is the Combined Local
Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not identified as being within a flood zone.

The site has no site specific policies however consideration will need to be given to
the following policies where they comply with the NPPF:

ST4 (Road Safety) — States the planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion
or harm to the character or appearance of the area.

CP7 (Urban Form and Quality) — Encourages the efficient use of existing
built-up areas by the recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-
used land to accommodate the redevelopment of and re-use of urban
sites, which are no longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in
the foreseeable future, for alternative land uses.

H4A (Dwelling Mix) — States the needs for a range of dwellings, including
an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet identified housing
need on a site-by-site basis.

It will be necessary to undertake a parking survey and prepare a transport statement
to demonstrate that the loss of parking would not be detrimental to highway
conditions or the amenities in the area because of a lack of parking.

The site is within the urban area and would comply with policy CP7.

The site would comply with policy H4A providing additional family housing.

Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Vodaphone

BT Openreach

National Grid

UK Power Networks

Virgin Media

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE)
Environment Agency

Thames Water

Responses have been received as follows :

Vodaphone: No issues.

BT Openreach: No issues.

National Grid: No issues.

UK Power Networks: No issues.

Virgin Media: No response

Page 92

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities St Peters Avenue 2



5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

7.0

71

P

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3

SSE: No issue
Environment Agency: No response
Thames Water: No issue

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be any
particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic associated
with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and within
normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues have
been highlighted with use of the domestic garages. Possible contaminants indicated
within the note produced by EFDC Planning and Economic Development
Directorate at Appendix D.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may include
asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal with
any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P4-29P Revision A we do not consider that
Party Wall matters will be relevant to development proposals.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East Thames
Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage 3 planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer's Requirements to be subsequently
confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East Thames
Housing Group Design Standards and Employer’s Requirement documentation.

Page 93

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities St Peters Avenue 3



8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

8.3

9.4.

9.5.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual contract
packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory services,
highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure size
of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East Thames
Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’'s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council’s Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide — September
2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as statutory planning
guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest whole
number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking surveys,
to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any planning or
highway problems.

Cycle parking will need to be provided at 1 secure covered space per dwelling if a
garage or secure area is not provided within the curtilage of the dwelling.

1 covered visitor cycle space will need to be provided per 8 dwellings if no secure
space is provided for each dwelling.

Legals

We have not been provided with a Housing Management Report and Legals
Checklist for this site.

Legal matters would therefore need to be checked to ensure there are no
encumbrances that affect redevelopment of the site.

Page 94

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities St Peters Avenue 4



11.0

12.0

12.1.

Signed :

Date :

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £1,519,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix E.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

For Pellings LLP

.................................... PO L R R e

Page 95

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities St Peters Avenue 5



Appendix A
Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P4-29P Revision A

Page 96



417 SINITT3d Jo Jybiukdos ase ubisap pue Bujmedp syl

=

VI3 627d1€201219
mzzas_m(@ Em;w,L iomomwim“ ummw__nm_n_%“mm__m - | wmc_——m m EEIEmN eIEm
N

]

Bulpling asnoH 0443 ..., VH seweyljseg __dﬂ!.J

Eas

AAVYNINIMIEd

aleN uopduossq  sjeq  AsY

62

se01L pejueld AMeN

a1
=

\ o NS

€ , 4
Bupiied + seBeies og

] L"

4

T
19 to 24

UHON

<>




-

V|d 6¢-+d|€20(2C19

oM

_ vl0z 030
s v

_ aN ‘ ev® 005
o g

JeBup
peoy sJa13d IS

sue|d pasodold
aw

BUPIING 3SNOH QAT 0y

G

I

UOY|IAD

BEEY

WH sauey] jse3

e

sBuljjed

auwen

I

wog wez

uopduossq

i
i

Ay

8 L 9 S 14
g€ ge ge g€ g€
"
¢
Vrvl\
/%d \\
g
L
e% \\umcaobsmzi
&
i /
&

seoedg Gdped €2
wbs g6 © sesnof peg € X §
BH LYE'0 BOlY &)IS

SIv1OoL

62

e

-

o g

AAVYNINIMNTEd

417 SINT2d 40 14BIAdo3 aue LBIsap pue Buimesp SIYL

“sBuMe.p JUEA[al 33 HIOK |

e Joy
de |jeys auwly
04 Bl Wau [eyy SUol|EPUBLILDIAl Saun|IejNuEW ajeisdadde
pue ‘adyiedd Jo S3P0) ‘SPUEQUBJS Ysijig jueAajas ayy e
Uiim Aidwod o ase diysuewsisam pue sjuauaduo3 “sjetajew |1y
“sbuinep doys bujsedasd

10 yion Aue 6UL3WW0I 31043 BYIS UG SUAISUBW |le AjuaA
“BujAep S|4 Wau 2jeds 40U og

Sug[ssIa pue sJousa ‘saiuedasnsip e Jloday

umﬁE

23U o}is 0} SSE00Y

peumo %5%\

/
\ poumo AlereAud

/

[1]
19 to 24



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 99



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 103



Epping Forest
District Council

)\ Allotment
= | Gardens

Propet | Content Date
Potential Site for Council House | St Peter's Road 04/07/12
Epping, Essex, Building Program Ongar Sﬁl;so 54
Drawing No. _
rawn By
201206@’4_‘- 104 Robert Irwin




Appendix D

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District Council by
way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential contamination across all the
primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites that move
forward to Planning Applications.

Page 105



Appendix E

Cost Build-up

Page 106



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

St Peter's Road Ongar

[Accommodation Summary Nr m2 ft2]
Affordable Apartments ] see accommodation
Affordable Houses 8 744 8,008
Bungalows ] schedule below
TOTAL GIFA 8 744 8,008
BUDGET COST ALLOWANCES
[ Item |Description | Qy | Unit | Rate | Totals |
1.00 Enabling Works
1.01 Demolition of existing garages 30 Nr £650 £19,500
1.02 Allowance for removal of asbestos 30 Nr £350 £10,500
1.03 Site clearance 3,128 m2 £15 £46,920
Sub-total £76,920

2.00 Construction
2.01 Apartments

Private areas m2 £1,150
Communal areas (20% allowed) m2 £750
2.02 Houses 744 m2 £1,050 £781,200
2.03 Bunglaows m2 £950
Sub-total £781,200
3.00 Abnormals
3.01 Allowance for contaminated ground [tem Excluded
3.02 Extra Over for wall:floor ratio (> 85%) 40 m2 £250 £10,000
3.03 Allowance for enhanced external fabric finish m2 £30 no allowance
3.04 Extra for wheelchair unit adaptations Nr £6,000 no allowance
3.05 Passenger lift serving apartments Nr £75,000 not required
3.06 Measures to achieve CfSH Level 4 8 Nr £2,500 £20,000
3.07 Balconies (average 4m2 each) Nr £2,200 no allowance
3.08 PV panels to roof m2 £750 no allowance
3.09 Extra Over for thin joint construction Nr £400 no allowance
3.10 Extra over cost for excavating and removing 1,222 m2 £20 £24,440

tarmac road surface

Sub-total £54,440

4.00 External Works (see build up overleaf) £343,115
5.00 Contractor's Preliminaries

5.01 Site set up, running costs, management, etc. 45 weeks £2,175 £97,875

5.02 Scaffolding 672 m2 £30 £20,160

5.03 Hoardings 423 m £60 £25,380

Sub-total £143,415

£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 1,880 175 1,399,090

(Excluding FF&E, Fees, etc.)

Page 107

St Peter's Avenue Feasibilty - Issue 01 1 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

St Peter's Road Ongar

6.00 Other Costs
6.01 Client FF&E (white goods, etc.) ltem Excluded
6.02 Telecoms / ICT / Security [tem Excluded
6.03 Contingency Allowance 5.0% £69,955
6.04 Contractor's Design Fees 4.0% £50,227
Totals £1,519,272

£/unit £/im2

TOTAL INDICATIVE BUDGET COST (say) 189,875 2,042 £1,519,000

Refer to below for Clarifications, Assumptions and Exclusions

EXTERNAL WORKS

[ item [Description | Qty | Unit | Rate | Totals |
4.01 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 708 m2 £45 £31,860
4.02 Communal soft landscaping 611 m2 £25 £15,275
4.03 Allowance for planting Item £1,500 no allowance
4.04 Allowance for communal drying area Nr £3,500 no allowance
4.05 Access road, parking and turning - adaptations 1,056 m2 £65 £68,640
4.06 Pedestrian paving - adaptations 335 m2 £45 £15,075
4.07 Cross over / highways adaptations ltem £1,500
4.08 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 423 m £120 £50,760
4.09 External bins store Nr £2,500 no allowance
4.10 Cycle store Nr £1,500 no allowance
4.11 Foul water drainage 744 m2 £65 £48,360
4.12 External surface water drainage 1,807 m2 £40 £72,280
4.13 Attenuation tanks, etc Item excluded
4.14 External lighting 1,391 m2 £15 £20,865
4,15 Utilities mains supplies 8 Nr £2,500 £20,000
4.16 New Substation Nr Excluded

Sub-total £343,115
[Description | Nr | GIA | Sub-Totals | Totals |
Flats/Maisonettes
1B 2P Flat 53 m?
2B 4P Flat 73 m?

Allowance for communal space

Houses
2B 4P House 77 m?
3B 5P House 8 Nr 93 m? 744 744
8 Nr
Bungalow: 2B
8 Nr 744
Page 108

St Peter's Avenue Feasibilty - Issue 01 2 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

St Peter's Road Ongar

CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimate based on:

6Pellings Drawing No. 612023.P4-29E Rev A and 612023.P4-29P Rev A

We have not had an opportunity to visit the site but photographs have been made available. We have also utilised Google
Earth to inform allowances.

GIFA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on 1Q 2015 prices with no allowance for future cost fluctuations

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 4

Cost include for OH&P @ 7%

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber or beam / block floor
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract
Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Assumed no Asbestos removal required, unless otherwise stated

No allowance has been made for designated child play space

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, 278 and other Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Commercial Commentary

PLLP is mindful that the construction industry is becoming increasingly volatile. We are seeing increasingly lengthy lead
in times for materials (in particular due to reduced brick and block stocks) which is having an effect on tender prices.

That said this project is likely to be attractive to the Contractors' various supply chains and should therefore stimulate an
element of healthy competition.

However, we would suggest that the Client retains a reasonable, undeclared Contingency to offset the potential risk that
market forces will increase tender prices.

Pellings LLP www.pellings.co.uk

Architecture & Planning ™ Interior Design ® Building Surveying B Project Management ®
Cost Consultancy M Health & Safety

24 Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY t 020 8460 9114 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Page 109

St Peter's Avenue Feasibilty - Issue 01 3 16-01-15



This page is intentionally left blank



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: Queensway, Ongar CM5 0BP

Ref. 1JC/srs/612.023
Date: January 2015

Page 111



Pellings

Contents

9.

© N o o~ w DN~

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls
Proposed Procurement Route

Impact on Parking

10. Legals
11. Costs

12. Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A Development Proposals — Drawing 612.023/P4-30 Revision A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan —210206014-BE
D: Information on Possible Contamination
E: Cost Build-up
Cbate | inital
1 Written by | 14/01/1;7t NP
w Checked by | 04/02/15 i nc |

Please note:

Unless otherwise stated all drawings, images and diagrams contained within this document are not to scale.

This document is the property and copyright of Pellings LLP

Page 112



1.0

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.1.

2.2.

2.3,

3.0

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

3.4.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District Council
for a 6-10 year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having possible
development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP has been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites, which
will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located within Chipping Ongar to the centre of houses fronting St Peters
Avenue and Queensway which are located to the north of Chipping Ongar.

The site is accessed from Queensway and has pedestrian access to St Peters
Avenue and is formed of garage blocks to two sides with hardstanding between.

The general surrounding area consists of apartments, semi-detached and terraced
dwellings dating from the 1950’s.

The site is used by the local youth population and is generally untidy and unloved.
Proposals
The proposals are as shown on drawing 612.023/P4-30 Revision A and comprise :

e 4 x 2 bed 2-storey semi-detached houses @ 77m?
e 12 parking spaces

Due to the constraints of the site, it is unlikely that turning space for fire appliances
and refuse vehicles will be achieved. Accordingly a sprinkler system may need to
be provided.

Design proposals have retained the pedestrian access to St Peters Avenue.

Proposals currently maintain the vehicular access on to the site from the rear
gardens of adjoining properties.

Planning Issues and Risks

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest Council is the Combined Local
Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not identified as being within a flood zone.

Page 113

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Queensway 1



4.3. The site has no site specific policies however consideration will need to be given to
the following policies where they comply with the NPPF:

e ST4 (Road Safety) — States the planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion
or harm to the character or appearance of the area.

e CP7 (Urban Form and Quality) — Encourages the efficient use of existing
built-up areas by the recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-
used land to accommodate the redevelopment of and re-use of urban
sites, which are no longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in
the foreseeable future, for alternative land uses.

e H4A (Dwelling Mix) — States the needs for a range of dwellings, including
an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet identified housing
need on a site-by-site basis.

4.4, It will be necessary to undertake a parking survey and prepare a transport statement
to demonstrate that the loss of parking would not be detrimental to highway
conditions or the amenities in the area because of a lack of parking.

4.5. The site is within the urban area and would comply with policy CP7.

4.6. The site would comply with policy H4A providing additional family housing.
5.0 Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

51. We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Vodaphone

BT Openreach

National Grid

UK Power Networks

Virgin Media

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE)
Environment Agency

Thames Water

Responses have been received as follows :

5.2. Vodaphone: No issues.

5.3. BT Openreach: No issues.

5.4. National Grid: No issues.

5.5. UK Power Networks: No issues.
5.6. Virgin Media: No response

8.7 SSE: No issue

5.8. Environment Agency: No response
5.8. Thames Water: No issue

Page 114

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Queensway 2



5.10.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be any
particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic associated
with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommeodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and within
normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues have
been highlighted with use of the domestic garages. Possible contaminants indicated
within the note produced by EFDC Planning and Economic Development
Directorate at Appendix D.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may include
asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal with
any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our proposals
do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles. Accordingly, subject
to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may be required along with
sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P4-30 Revision A we do not consider that
Party Wall matters will be relevant to development proposals.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East Thames
Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage 3 planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer’'s Requirements to be subsequently

confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East Thames
Housing Group Design Standards and Employer’s Requirement documentation.

Page 115

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Queensway 3



8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

8.5,

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual contract
packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory services,
highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure size
of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East Thames
Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council’'s currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council's Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide — September
2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as statutory planning
guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest whole
number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking surveys,
to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any planning or
highway problems.

Cycle parking will need to be provided at 1 secure covered space per dwelling if a
garage or secure area is not provided within the curtilage of the dwelling.

1 covered visitor cycle space will need to be provided per 8 dwellings if no secure
space is provided for each dwelling.

Legals

We have not been provided with a Housing Management Report and Legals
Checklist for this site.

Legal matters would therefore need to be checked to ensure there are no
encumbrances that affect redevelopment of the site.

Page 116

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Queensway 4



12.0

12.1.

Signed :

Date :

Costs

It is considered that a budget of 833,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix E.

Recommendations and Conclusions
Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for

taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Page 117

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Queensway 5



Appendix A
Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P4-30 Revision A

Page 118



4

0£-7dI€201Z}19

e} k

oo
dN [ev® oogit _ 10z 030
- hwvaa ELes) wva

lebug
Remsusany
sue|d pasodold pue Bugsixg

Buipling 8snoH 0043 . .

Elll
VYH sswey] jse3q s

__sbuljied

| [

I

wez

- -

uopduosaq  sleg  AeY




Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 120



Appendix B - Site Photographs




Page 122



Page 123



Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 124



Epping Forest
District Council

iy

Allotment
Gardens

Three Ways
House
] %
o 122
8EL ’- 8
hl b
9} {opy " 851 291 | 991
094 | voL
(o}
T il
5 &
o c
= L
2 O
7 Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
& © Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No: 100018534 2011
/\ 1 1 .
Directorate of Environment & Street S Project Content Date
Clvic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Queensway 04/07/12
High Street Building Program Ongar Scale
Epping, Essex, 1:1250 @ A4
CM16 4BZ Drawing No. i
Tel. 01992 564000 Drawn By
201206014 -Bfy v 121 Robert Irwin
I go =459

A



Appendix D

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District Council by
way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential contamination across all the
primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination
issues are to be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites that move
forward to Planning Applications.

Page 126



Appendix E

Cost Build-up

Page 127



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Queensway Ongar

[Accommodation Summary Nr m2 ft2|
Affordable Apartments ] see accommodation
Affordable Houses 4 308 3,315
Bungalows _ ] schedule below
TOTAL GIFA 4 308 3,315
BUDGET COST ALLOWANCES
[ Item JDescription | Qy ] Unit | Rate | Totals |
1.00 Enabling Works
1.01 Demolition of existing garages 37 Nr £650 £24,050
1.02 Allowance for removal of asbestos 37 Nr £350 £12,950
1.03 Site clearance 1,584 m2 £15 £23,760
Sub-total £60,760

2.00 Construction
2.01 Apartments

Private areas m2 £1,150
Communal areas (20% allowed) m2 £750
2.02 Houses 308 m2 £1,050 £323,400
2.03 Bunglaows m2 £950
Sub-total £323,400
3.00 Abnormals
3.01 Allowance for contaminated ground ltem Excluded
3.02 Extra Over for wall:floor ratio (> 85%) 170 m2 £250 £42 500
3.03 Allowance for enhanced external fabric finish m2 £30 no allowance
3.04 Extra for wheelchair unit adaptations Nr £6,000 no allowance
3.05 Passenger lift serving apartments Nr £75,000 not required
3.06 Measures to achieve CfSH Level 4 4 Nr £2,500 £10,000
3.07 Balconies (average 4m2 each) Nr £2,200 no allowance
3.08 PV panels to roof m2 £750 no allowance
3.09 Extra Over for thin joint construction Nr £400 no allowance
3.10 Extra over cost for excavating and removing 1,134 m2 £20 £22,680
tarmac road surface
Sub-total £75,180
4.00 External Works (see build up overleaf) £213,185
5.00 Contractor's Preliminaries
5.01 Site set up, running costs, management, etc. 40 weeks £1,605 £64,200
5.02 Scaffolding 432 m2 £30 £12,960
5.03 Hoardings 305 m £60 £18,300
Sub-total £95,460
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 2,493 232 767,985

(Excluding FF&E, Fees, etc.)

Queensway Feasibilty - Issue 01 Page 1‘28 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01

East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council P .
ellings
Queensway Ongar
6.00 Other Costs
6.01 Client FF&E (white goods, etc.) Item Excluded
6.02 Telecoms / ICT / Security Item Excluded
6.03 Contingency Allowance 5.0% £38,399
6.04 Contractor's Design Fees 4.0% £26,901
Totals £833,285
£/unit £/m2
TOTAL INDICATIVE BUDGET COST (say) 208,250 2,705 £833,000

Refer to below for Clarifications, Assumptions and Exclusions

EXTERNAL WORKS

| Item [Description | Qty | Unit | Rate | Totals |
4.01 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 374 m2 £45 £16,830
4.02 Communal soft landscaping 611 m2 £25 £15,275
4.03 Allowance for planting ltem £1,500 no allowance
4.04 Allowance for communal drying area Nr £3,500 no allowance
4.05 Access road, parking and turning - adaptations 707 m2 £65 £45,955
4.06 Pedestrian paving - adaptations 223 m2 £45 £10,035

4.07 Cross over / highways adaptations ltem £1,500
4.08 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 305 m £120 £36,600
4.09 External bins store Nr £2,500 no allowance
4.10 Cycle store Nr £1,500 no allowance
4.11 Foul water drainage 308 m2 £65 £20,020
4.12 External surface water drainage 1,113 m2 £40 £44,520
4.13 Attenuation tanks, etc ltem excluded
4.14 External lighting 930 m2 £15 £13,950
4.15 Utilities mains supplies 4 Nr £2,500 £10,000
4.16 New Substation Nr Excluded
Sub-total £213,185

ACCONNODATION SCHEDULE

[ Description | Nr |  GIA | Sub-Totals | Totals |

Flats/Maisonettes

1B 2P Flat 53 m?

2B 4P Flat 73 m?

Allowance for communal space

Houses

2B 4P House 4 Nr 77 m? 308

3B 5P House 93 m? 308
4 Nr

Bungalow: 2B
4 Nr 308

Queensway Feasibilty - Issue 01 Page 129 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Queensway Ongar
CLARIFICATIONS AND ASSUNMPTIONS

Estimate based on:

6Pellings Drawing No. 612023.P4-30 Rev A

We have not had an opportunity to visit the site but photographs have been made available. We have also utilised Google
Earth to inform allowances.

GIFA is approximate due to early stage of design

Costs are based on 1Q 2015 prices with no allowance for future cost fluctuations

Costs are based on a Single Stage Competitive D&B procurement route

Costs are based on a Contractor 'best programme' contract period

All units assumed to achieve Code for sustainable Homes Level 4

Cost include for OH&P @ 7%

It is assumed that a traditional construction (concrete strip foundations, brick/block walls, timber or beam / block floor
Contractors design fees are based upon appointment with planning consent under JCT D&B contract

Assumed no Party Wall or Rights of Lights issues

Assumed no Asbestos removal required, unless otherwise stated

No allowance has been made for designated child play space

Exclusions

Clients professional fees (including statutory fees)

VAT

Excludes any off-site works

Provision of loose fittings and furnishings

Costs of compliance of any conditions imposed by statutory bodies

Costs of Section 106, 278 and other Agreement(s) or Community Infrastructure Levy charges

Commercial Commentary

PLLP is mindful that the construction industry is becoming increasingly volatile. We are seeing increasingly lengthy lead
in times for materials (in particular due to reduced brick and block stocks) which is having an effect on tender prices.

That said this project is likely to be attractive to the Contractors' various supply chains and should therefore stimulate an
element of healthy competition.

However, we would suggest that the Client retains a reasonable, undeclared Contingency to offset the potential risk that
market forces will increase tender prices.

Pellings LLP www.pellings.co.uk

Architecture & Planning M Interior Design M Building Surveying M Project Management H
Cost Consultancy B Health & Safety

24 \Widmore Road Bromley Kent BR1 1RY t 020 8460 9114 e bromley@pellings.co.uk

Queensway Feasibilty - Issue 01 Page 130 16-01-15



Pellings

East Thames Housing / Epping Forest District Council
Housing Delivery Programme

Feasibility Report

Site: Graylands, Theydon Bois CM16 7LB

Ref:  1JC/srs/612.023
Date: January 2015

Page 131



Pellings

Contents

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief
Existing Site and Surroundings
Proposals

Planning Issues and Risks
Impact/Implications of Statutory Services
Site Access and Buildability Issues
Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

© N o o b~ 0D~

Proposed Procurement Route
9. Impact on Parking

10. Legals

11. Costs

12. Recommendations and Conclusions

Appendices
A: Development Proposals — Drawing 612.023/P4-31 Revision A
B: Site Photographs
C: Existing Site Plan —210206014-BG
D: Information on Possible Contamination
E: Cost Build-up

| Date | Initial |
| T 7 I
| Written by | 14/01/15 | NP ‘
‘ : | |
| Checked by | 09/02/15 | UC
Please note:
Unless otherwise stated all drawings, images and diagrams contained within this document are not to scale.

This docurnent is the property and copyright of Pellings LLP

Page 132



1.0

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

1.4.

2.0

2.7,

22,

2.3.

3.0

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

Introduction and Confirmation of Brief

Pellings LLP are appointed as part of East Thames Group Technical Team in
respect of delivery of Development Agent services to Epping Forest District Council
for a 6-10 year housing delivery programme.

Following initial appraisal by EFDC, 59 sites have been identified as having possible
development potential, with a further number of sites in reserve.

Pellings LLP has been instructed to progress feasibility studies to all 59 sites, which
will assist in establishing the extent and timing of the overall programme.

Our instructions are in accordance with our fee tender of 13 August 2012, against
the previously prepared tender documentation, and email confirmation of 9 April
2013.

Existing Site and Surroundings

The site is located on the south western edge of Theydon Bois off Graylands. The
site has garages to its southern side with a pumping station to the middle of the row.
Rear gardens form the other boundaries and the access to the site is from the north
east corner.

The general surrounding area consists of apartments, semi-detached and terraced
dwellings dating from the 1950’s.

A foul and surface water sewer runs through the site in addition to an electric cable.
A BT pole is on site adjacent the rear of the pumping station.

Proposals
The proposals are as shown on drawing 612.023/P4-31 Revision A and comprise :

e 1 x1 bed detached bungalow @ 48m?
e 3 parking spaces

Due to the constraints of the site, it is unlikely that turning space for fire appliances
and refuse vehicles will be achieved. Accordingly a sprinkler system may need to
be provided.

Design proposals have responded to the numerous existing services on site and
have respected the 3m no build zone typically required. Detailed locations of these
underground services will be required should the scheme progress.

Due to the numerous constraints and in order to provide any development on site it
has been necessary to position the development in the north west corner. It has also
been necessary build up to the existing boundary of the site.

Planning Issues and Risks

The adopted Development Plan for Epping Forest Council is the Combined Local
Plan 1998 and Local Plan Alterations 2006.

The site is not identified as being within a flood zone.

Page 133

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Graylands 1



4.3. The site has no site specific policies however consideration will need to be given to
the following policies where they comply with the NPPF:

e ST4 (Road Safety) — States the planning permission will only be granted
where there will be no adverse effects on the highway, traffic congestion
or harm to the character or appearance of the area.

e CP7 (Urban Form and Quality) — Encourages the efficient use of existing
built-up areas by the recycling of vacant, derelict, degraded and under-
used land to accommodate the redevelopment of and re-use of urban
sites, which are no longer appropriate to their existing or proposed use in
the foreseeable future, for alternative land uses.

e H4A (Dwelling Mix) — States the needs for a range of dwellings, including
an appropriate proportion of smaller dwellings, to meet identified housing
need on a site-by-site basis.

44, It will be necessary to undertake a parking survey and prepare a transport statement
to demonstrate that the loss of parking would not be detrimental to highway
conditions or the amenities in the area because of a lack of parking.

4.5. The site is within the urban area and would comply with policy CP7.

4.6. The site would comply with policy H4A providing additional family housing.
5.0 Impact/Implications of Statutory Services

51. We have undertaken statutory services enquiries to the following:

Vodaphone

BT Openreach

National Grid

UK Power Networks

Virgin Media

National Grid

Scottish and Southern Energy (SSE)
Environment Agency

Thames Water

Responses have been received as follows :

5.2. Vodaphone: No issues.

5.3. BT Openreach: BT pole

54. National Grid: No issues.

5.5. UK Power Networks: Cable serving pumping station — details shown on drawing

612.023/P4-31 Revision A.

5.6. Virgin Media: No response
5.7. SSE: No issue
5.8. Environment Agency: No response

Page 134

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Graylands 2



5.9.

5.10.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

B.7.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

73

7.4.

Thames Water: Surface and foul drainage through centre of site — details shown on
drawing 612.023/P4-31-Revision A.

It should be noted there are a number of responses to enquiries that, at time of
preparation of this report, have not yet been received.

Site Access and Buildability Issues

The site is accessed from existing site roads and there would not appear to be any
particular difficulties for the normal level and size of construction traffic associated
with a development of this nature.

Areas should be available for contractor’s site set up and accommodation.

The site is within a primarily residential area, and accordingly, any appointed
contractor should use all best endeavours to act in a considerate manner and within
normal working hours.

Further to initial enquiries made to EFDC, some potential contamination issues have
been highlighted with use of the domestic garages. Possible contaminants indicated
within the note produced by EFDC Planning and Economic Development
Directorate at Appendix D.

Possible contaminants in respect of the previous use of the garage site may include
asbestos, ash and clinker, hydro-carbons from vehicle maintenance and the like.

Accordingly, suitable site investigation will need to be undertaken ahead of any
proposals to take this site forward and specific recommendations made to deal with
any contamination found, whether by capping or removal from site.

The site is accessed by way of a narrow driveway and as at present, our proposals
do not include a turning head for refuse or emergency vehicles. Accordingly, subject
to detailed design, an independent refuse storage area may be required along with
sprinkler provision to the new houses for fire protection.

Neighbourly Matters and Party Walls

As above, the proposed development site is within a primarily residential area and
the appointed contractor should act in a considerate manner. It is proposed that
restrictions on working hours, noise levels, requirement for resident liaison and
similar matters will be included within contract documentation.

From proposals on Drawing 612.023/P4-31 Revision A, Party Wall matters may be
relevant to development, particularly adjacent to No. 25 Graylands.

Confirmation of ownership will be required in due course.
Such Party Wall matters may be undertaken ahead of the build contract by direct
appointment by EFDC, or included as a requirement for the contractor to deal with

within the build contract. This later approach, however, would carry increased risk to
programme and cost.

Page 135

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Graylands 3



8.0

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

9.0

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

Proposed Procurement Route

It is understood that development works will be procured by way of the East Thames
Housing Group existing contractor framework arrangements.

It is proposed that works shall be procured on a Design and Build basis with the
contractors taking forward RIBA Stage 3 planning consent drawings into detailed
design and construction delivery on site.

Schemes shall be designed to a set of Employer’'s Requirements to be subsequently
confirmed but which substantially shall be formed from existing East Thames
Housing Group Design Standards and Employer’s Requirement documentation.

It is proposed that all site preparation works will be included within individual contract
packages including any required demolitions, adjustment of statutory services,
highways works and boundary maintenance/reinstatement/provision.

On completion of the feasibility studies for the whole programme, further
recommendations will be made in terms of how works are packaged to ensure size
of work packages are optimised for ensuring maximum economies for East Thames
Housing Group and EFDC.

It is considered, at this stage, that this may be by way of a mix of different sized
contractors dependent upon the numbers and geographical location of individual
works packages.

Works will be administered by Pellings LLP as Employer's Agent acting in
accordance with East Thames Housing Group terms of appointment and the over
arching requirements of the Development Agency agreement.

Impact on Parking

The Council's currently adopted parking standards are contained within Essex
County Council’'s Parking Standards Design and Good Practice Guide — September
2009. These revised standards were adopted by the Council as statutory planning
guidance in February 2012.

Flats and houses have the same parking standard as follows:

e 1 bedroom accommodation — 1 space per dwelling

e 2 bedroom accommodation and above — 2 spaces per dwelling

e Visitor parking — 0.25 spaces per dwelling (rounded up to the nearest whole
number)

The proposals would appear to more than meet the Council’s parking standards for
new development.

However, should the site move forward to planning application stages, it is
recommended that a Transport Statement be undertaken, including parking surveys,
to demonstrate that the loss of the garages will not give rise to any planning or
highway problems.

Page 136

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Graylands 4



9.5.

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

11.0

11.1.

12.0

12.1.

Date :

Cycle parking will need to be provided at 1 secure covered space per dwelling if a
garage or secure area is not provided within the curtilage of the dwelling.

1 covered visitor cycle space will need to be provided per 8 dwellings if no secure
space is provided for each dwelling.

Legals

We have not been provided with a Housing Management Report and Legals
Checklist for this site.

Legal matters would therefore need to be checked to ensure there are no
encumbrances that affect redevelopment of the site.

Costs

It is considered that a budget of £227,000.00 should be allowed for this scheme,
inclusive of contractor design fees, but exclusive of professional fees and VAT.
Please refer to Appendix E.

Recommendations and Conclusions

Subject to an overall lifetime cost appraisal, we conclude that the site appears to
have economic development opportunities and we recommend is considered for
taking forward to planning application stage, with a view to incorporating into the
overall programme.

Page 137

612023/Phase 2015 Feasibilities Graylands 5



Appendix A
Development Proposals

Drawings 612.023/P4-31 Revision A

Page 138



nl
1

- UL

<; —‘MIWQ7MNO_N—\® m_omm:o_n;m;._. . _
- pue|Aels
dN_ |ev® o005l 10z 030 sue|d pasodold pue Bugsixa m m — —wm
4 _ = C _

se]

sigs wez 0 wg

Buipjing 8snoH 0043 o VH SSLEULISES .,

it

Em e
AHVYNINITFHEd

50 |
qunuinBeuniy yaafor w By w A .mﬁE

L.

saoed Pied €
wbs gy @ Mmojebung peg | X |
BH LYO' 1Y ells

STVLOL

30vANS g22

30V4HNs sZT

/



Appendix B

Site Photographs

Page 140



Appendix B - Site Photographs

Page 141



Page 142




Appendix C

Existing Site Plan

Page 143



Epping Forest
District Council

Fallow House

Contains Ordnance Survey & Royal Mail Data
© Crown Copyright & Database Right 2011
EFDC License No: 100018534 2011

Directorate of Environment & Street Scene Project Content Date

Civic Offices Potential Site for Council House | Graylands 04/07/12

High Street Building Program Theydon Bois Scale

Epping, Essex, 1:1250 @ A4

CM16 4BZ Drawing No. .

Tel. 01992 564000 Drawn By
Robert Irwin

220PAgE 144




Appendix D

Information on Possible Contamination

Information on possible contamination has been forwarded by Epping Forest District Council by
way of email of 22nd May 2013, giving information on potential contamination across all the
primary sites.

This clarifies possible ground contamination derived from asbestos, made ground,
hydrocarbons, petroleum hydrocarbons and the like.

It is likely that any Planning Consent will carry a Condition that all contamination issues are to
be remediated.

Accordingly, we recommend that initial site investigation is undertaken for all sites that move
forward to Planning Applications.

Page 145



Appendix E

Cost Build-up

Page 146



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01

East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council Pel | | n g s
Graylands Theydon Bois
|Accommodation Summary Nr m2 ft2|
Affordable Apartments ] see accommodation
Affordable Houses 1 48 517
Bungalows ] schedule below
TOTAL GIFA 1 48 517

BUDGET COST ALLOWANCES

| ltem |Description | Qy | Unit | Rate | Totals |
1.00 Enabling Works
1.01 Demolition of existing garages 8 Nr £650 £5,200
1.02 Allowance for removal of asbestos 8 Nr £350 £2,800
1.03 Site clearance 406 m2 £15 £6,090
Sub-total £14,090
2.00 Construction
2.01 Apartments
Private areas m2 £1,150
Communal areas (20% allowed) m2 £750
2.02 Houses 48 m2 £1,050 £50,400
2.03 Bunglaows m2 £950
Sub-total £50,400
3.00 Abnormals
3.01 Allowance for contaminated ground Item Excluded
3.02 Extra Over for wall:floor ratio (> 85%) 50 m2 £250 £12,500
3.03 Allowance for enhanced external fabric finish m2 £30 no allowance
3.04 Extra for wheelchair unit adaptations Nr £6,000 no allowance
3.05 Passenger lift serving apartments Nr £75,000 not required
3.06 Measures to achieve CfSH Level 4 1 Nr £2,500 £2,500
3.07 Balconies (average 4m2 each) Nr £2,200 no allowance
3.08 PV panels to roof m2 £750 no allowance
3.09 Extra Over for thin joint construction Nr £400 no allowance
3.10 Extra over cost for excavating and removing 334 m2 £20 £6,680
tarmac road surface
3.11 Hand dig for UKPN power cable 15 m £150 £2,297
3.12 Hand dig for225mm surface water drain 32 m £150 £4,853
3.13 Hand dig for 150mm dimater foul water drain 35 m £150 £5,250
3.14 Allowance of hand digging around pumped mains 1 Item £3,000 £3,000
for pumping station
3.15 Remove and reinstate BT Pole (after completion 1 ltem £1,500 £1,500
of works to remove tarmac and form new
communal area)
3.16 Boundary treatment to pumping station 8 m £120 £960
Sub-total £39,539
4.00 External Works (see build up overleaf) £74,970
5.00 Contractor's Preliminaries
5.01 Site set up, running costs, management, etc. 26 weeks £850 £22,100
5.02 Scaffolding 91 m2 £30 £2,730
5.03 Hoardings 98 m £60 £5,880
Sub-total £30,710
£/m2 £/ft2
INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COST 4,369 406 209,709
(Excluding FF&E, Fees, etc.)
Page 147
Graylands Feasibilty - Issue 01 1 16-01-15



FEASIBILITY ESTIMATE - Issue 01
East Thames Housing Epping Forest District Council

Pellings

Graylands Theydon Bois

6.00 Other Costs

6.01 Client FF&E (white goods, etc.) [tem Excluded
6.02 Telecoms / ICT / Security Item Excluded
6.03 Contingency Allowance 5.0% £10,485
6.04 Contractor's Design Fees 4.0% £7,160
Totals £227,355

£/unit £/m2
TOTAL INDICATIVE BUDGET COST (say) 227,000 4,729 £227,000

Refer to below for Clarifications, Assumptions and Exclusions

EXTERNAL WORKS

[ Item [Description | Qy |  Unt | Rate | Totals |
4.01 Private gardens (incl. fencing) 81 m2 £45 £3,645
4.02 Communal soft landscaping 53 m2 £25 £1,325
4.03 Allowance for planting ltem £1,500 no allowance
4.04 Allowance for communal drying area Nr £3,500 no allowance
4.05 Access road, parking and turning - adaptations 138 m2 £65 £8,970
4.06 Pedestrian paving - adaptations 65 m2 £45 £2,925
4.07 Cross over / highways adaptations ltem £1,500
4.08 Boundary treatment (fencing/walls) 305 m £120 £36,600
4.09 External bins store Nr £2,500 no allowance
4.10 Cycle store Nr £1,500 no allowance
4.11 Foul water drainage 48 m2 £65 £3,120
4.12 External surface water drainage 321 m2 £40 £12,840
4.13 Attenuation tanks, etc ) ltem excluded
4.14 External lighting 203 m2 £15 £3,045
4.15 Utilities mains supplies 1 Nr £2,500 £2,500
4.16 New Substation Nr Excluded

Sub-total £74,970
|25 ACCONMODATION'SCHEDUIER ¢ SR EN i s oo ) B e e e e i
| Description | Nr [ GIA | Sub-Totals | Totals |
Flats/Maisonettes
1B 2P Flat 53 m?
2B 4P Flat 73 m?

Allowance for communal space

Houses

2B 4P House 77 m?

3B 5P House 93 m?

Bungalow: 1B 1 Nr 48 m? 48 48

48

Page 148

Graylands F<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>